Public Document Pack

Civic Centre,

Arnot Hill Park,

e lng Arnold,
Nottingh hi

Borough Council otting I\? (r3n58 6{%

Agenda

Cabinet

Date: Thursday 5 September 2019

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Chappell Room

For any further information please contact:
Alec Dubberley

Service Manager Democratic Services
0115901 3906

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio
or another format.



Cabinet

Membership
Chair Councillor John Clarke
Vice-Chair Councillor Michael Payne

Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Viv McCrossen
Councillor Henry Wheeler



AGENDA

Apologies for Absence.

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 1
August 2019.

Declaration of Interests.

Establish a budget for Gedling Country Park Outside Seating Area

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance.

Establish a budget for Conway Road Recreation Ground Play Area
Redevelopment

Report of the Service Manager Parks and Street Care.

Gedling Borough Statement of Community Involvement

Report of the Service Manager Planning Policy.

Review of complaints received by the Council and Annual Review
Letter — Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 2018/19

Report of the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services.

Forward Plan

Report of the Service Manager Democratic Services.

Any other items the Chair considers urgent.

Page

13-34

35-80

81-97

99 - 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

MINUTES
CABINET

Thursday 1 August 2019

Councillor John Clarke (Chair)

Councillor Peter Barnes Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor David Ellis Councillor Viv McCrossen
Absent: Councillor Michael Payne, Councillor Gary Gregory
and Councillor Henry Wheeler
Officers in Attendance: K Bradford, H Barrington, M Hill, D Wakelin and
L Mellors
17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Payne, Gregory
and Wheeler.
18 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE

MEETING HELD ON 27 JUNE 2019.
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be
approved as a correct record.

19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
None.
20 REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE HOUSEHOLD

REFUSE RECYCLING SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP

The Chair of the Household Refuse Recycling Working Group
introduced a report, which had been circulated in advance of the
meeting, on the final report and recommendations of the Household
Refuse Recycling Working Group.

RESOLVED to:

1) Thank the working group for the report; and

Page 5



21

22

23

2) Refer the report to the appropriate Cabinet Member in order for a
response to be made to the Overview Scrutiny Committee at the
next meeting.

PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATOR MONITORING 2019/20 AND
QUARTERLY TREASURY ACTIVITY REPORT FOR QUARTER
ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance introduced a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, informing Members of
the performance monitoring of the 2019/20 Prudential Code Indicators,
and to advise Members of the quarterly treasury activity as required by
the Treasury Management Strategy.

RESOLVED:

To note the report, together with the Treasury Activity Report 2019/20 for
Quarter 1 at Appendix 1 to the report, and the Prudential and Treasury
Indicator Monitoring 2019/20 for Quarter 1, at Appendix 2 to the report.

QUARTERLY (Q1) BUDGET MONITORING AND VIREMENT
REPORT

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance introduced a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, providing details of the
likely year-end financial position as at the end of quarter 1 of the
2019/20 financial year.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the General Fund Budget virements set out in Appendix
1 to the report;

2) Note the use of reserves and funds during quarter one as detailed
in Appendix 2 to the report; and

3) Approve the changes to the capital programme included in
paragraph 2.3 of the report.

GEDLING PLAN QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Chief Executive introduced a report, which had been circulated prior
to the meeting, providing information about Council performance during
quarter one of 2019/20.

RESOLVED:

To note progress against improvement actions and performance
indicators in 2019/209 Gedling Plan.

Page 6



24

25

26

GEDLING BOROUGH HOUSING DELIVERY ACTION PLAN AND
FIVE YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 2019

The Service Manager Planning Policy introduced a report, which had
been circulated prior to the meeting, presenting the Housing Delivery
Action Plan and the updated Five Year Housing and Land Supply
assessment.

Members were informed of a required amendment paragraph 1.28 of the
report, where the date range should read “1 April 2019 to 31 March
2024” at the fifth bullet point.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the Gedling Borough Housing Delivery Action Plan 2019
for publication; and

2) Note the Gedling Borough Five Year Housing Land Supply 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE SENIOR INFORMATION RISK OWNER
2018/19

The Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services
introduced a report, which had been circulated prior to the meeting,
summarising the work of the Senior Information Risk owner during the
2018/19.

RESOLVED to:

1) Note the annual report of the Senior Information Risk Owner
2018/19;

2) Endorse the Information Governance Framework; and

3) Approve the continuation of the arrangements relating to the Data
Protection Officer.

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)
ANNUAL AUDIT AND UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager — Legal
Services, which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, updating
Members on the Council’'s use of powers under the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) between 1 April 2018 and 31
March 2019 in line with the Council’s RIPA policy.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

Page 7



27

28

FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager, Democratic
Services, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, detailing the
Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month period.
RESOLVED:

To note the report.

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.

Under this item Clir McCrossen spoke about the Youth Programme
being introduced over this year's school holidays to provide

events/activities for young people and congratulated the Community
Relations Team for their hard work pulling the programme together.

The meeting finished at 3.25 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 4

Gedling #%

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Establish a budget for Gedling Country Park Outside Seating Area
Date: 5 September 2019

Author: Mike Hill, Deputy Chief Executive

Wards Affected

Gedling, Plains, Dumbles, Phoenix, Porchester, & Trent Valley Wards.
Purpose

To obtain Cabinet approval to establish a capital budget and appropriate planning
permissions for a new outdoor covered seating area at the Gedling Country Park Café
1899.

Key Decision
This is not a key decision.
Recommendation(s)

Cabinet approve the capital budget of £107,800 for the installation of a new outdoor
covered seating area at the Gedling Country Park Café 1899, to be fully funded from
Section 106 contributions.

Cabinet delegate authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance to
apply for any necessary planning permissions and consents, should they be required,
to create the seating area.

1. Background

1.1 Gedling Country Park is a flagship green space for the Council with large
areas of open space, footpaths and wildlife for all to enjoy with stunning
views over the surrounding areas. It is designated as a Local Nature
reserve and has recently retained its “green flag” award status which

Page 9



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

recognises well managed parks and green spaces.

The Council has ambitions to continually develop the park, and the
installation of a new outdoor covered seating area immediately adjacent to
Café 1899 is the latest of these projects to be considered.

The Café 1899 has been in operation for a few years now, and feedback
from customers has made it clear that an outdoor covered seating area that
provides protection from the sun in hot weather, or from the wind and rain in
other times will provide a much needed facility for visitors and dog walkers
alike.

A Section 106 open space contribution is available from the Spring Lane
development (2007/0748) for spend at Gedling Country Park with a
remaining balance of £107,800.

In order to secure a contractor and carry out the project, a budget must first
be established in the capital programme.

2. Proposal

2.1

Approval is sought to establish a capital budget of £107,800 for the
installation of an outdoor covered seating area at Gedling Country Park to
be fully funded from Section 106 contributions.

3. Alternative Options

3.1

Not to set up the capital budget and use the Section 106 contribution on a
different project at the country park. However this seating area is a request
from customers of the park and café.

4. Financial implications

4.1

4.2
4.3

The total cost of the project will be determined once a specification has
been prepared and contractors are asked to tender for the opportunity.

The budget for the works will be capped at a maximum of £107,800.

The installation of the outdoor covered seating area is expected to have a
positive impact on the operation and profitability of the Café 1899.

Page 10



5. Appendices

None.

6. Background Papers

None.

7. Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

All visitors to the country park will have the opportunity to visit the Café
1899 and the new seating area, which will provide an inviting area for
relaxation and enjoyment. It will also enhance the experience for dog
walkers who have not previously had the opportunity to relax in the Café
environment and contribute to the delivery of the fitness and wellbeing
agenda by providing a place for people to exercise.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Establish a budget for Conway Road Recreation Ground Play Area
Redevelopment

Date: 5 September 2019

Author:  Melvyn Cryer, Service Manager Parks & Street Care
Wards Affected

Gedling Ward, Netherfield Ward, Trent Valley Ward

Purpose

To obtain Cabinet approval to establish a capital budget for the redevelopment of
Conway Road Recreation Ground Play Area from funding provided by FCC
Communities Foundation Ltd (formerly known as WREN — Waste Recycling
Environmental Ltd)

Key Decision

This is not a key decision

Recommendation(s)
THAT:

Cabinet approve a capital budget of £102,000 for the development of a
new Conway Road Play Area which is partially funded by external grant
funding from FCC Communities Foundation Ltd.

1 Background

1.1 Netherfield Steering Group, in partnership with Gedling Borough
Council Parks and Street Care submitted a funding bid for £94,500
to FCC Communities Foundation Ltd to fund the development of a
new play area at Conway Road Recreation Ground, a park which is
Gedling Borough Council owned. The Netherfield Steering Group
oversees the development and implementation of Netherfield

Page 13



1.2

Locality Plan which was approved by Cabinet in 2013. The Steering
Group held a series of consultation events within the Netherfield
Ward namely Netherfield Primary School, St. Georges Centre and
Conway Park Pavilion. The consultation events generated a lot of
discussions around how the park should be improved. Discussions
were also held with the two bowling clubs based at Conway Park
who were keen to see the park improved and engaged with the
process. The improvement works form part of a Development Plan
setting out the strategic objective to improve the park with outline
designs that were approved at the various consultation events held.
[Appendix 1]. Also available is a “virtual reality fly through”
developed to be used as part of any funding bids and to show
residents what the park could like after the improvements had been
implemented. The play area development is phase one of the
project to improve the park. Funding is still being sought to improve
the rest of the park. As part of the funding bid for phase one, FCC
Communities Foundation Ltd require a contribution from a third party
funding provider, this amount is 10.75% of the amount of total
funding applied for. This amount is used to unlock the landfill tax
from the central regulators. For this project the funding amount
applied for is £94,500, therefore the amount of the 3™ party
contributory payment is £10,200 which Gedling Borough Council
have agreed to fund and will pay directly to FCC. Further costs of
£7,500 to the Council will be the cost of the Contract Administration
works being undertaken by the Environmental Management and Design
Team at Via East Midlands who formed part of the original team that
developed the Improvement Plan/Strategy for the Park as well as the
outline designs. Via also helped with the bid submission by
providing up to date figures for the bid based on recent tenders for
similar projects within Nottinghamshire. Via has performed similar
roles within the Borough.

This area has been identified in the Councils’ Green Space Strategy
as offering insufficient play provision due to it’s built up nature and
would benefit from such a new development. It is therefore one of
the priorities of the neighbourhood and parks department teams to
improve the current offer by introducing a new play area. Parks and
Street Care have the responsibility to maintain the current park and
they will continue with this arrangement including the new play area
following its installation. The award of funding is not considered
secured until the funding agreement between FCC Communities
Foundation Ltd and GBC is in place. The funding agreement cannot
be completed until GBC with the support of the Environmental
Management and Design Team at Via have carried out a procurement
exercise for the play area refurbishment, which will identify the
winning supplier and identify the costs of individual pieces of play
equipment and their installation costs. This breakdown information

Page 14



is used to identify the actual items FCC Communities Foundation
Ltd will be funding and the information is added as an appendix to
the funding agreement.

1.3 Inorder to secure a contractor and carry out the project, a budget
must be established in the Capital programme.

Proposal

That approval is given to set up a capital budget of £102,000 for the
redevelopment of Conway Road Recreation Ground Play Area with
£82,300 being funded by FCC Communities Foundation Ltd as per the
offer letter received by the Council.

Alternative Options

Not to set up the capital budget and develop the play area now, but do so
at a later date if other funding becomes available. Funding is available
specifically for this project, GBC do not have the authority to expend this
funding amount on any other project. The funding criteria requires Gedling
Borough Council to enter into an agreement with FCC Communities
Foundation Ltd within 6 months of being notified of the award, if this is not
achieved the funding offer will be retracted and FCC Communities
Foundation Ltd will use the funds on another project.

Financial Implications
4.1 Capital

The total cost of the project is £102,000, this to be funded from £94,500 by
external grant from FCC Communities Foundation Ltd. [Appendix 2].
However the council need to contribute £10,200 of 3 party contributions to
receive this grant. [Appendix 3]. Therefore the Net grant received will be
£84,300. Alongside this are £7,500 contract administration costs to Via
East Midlands funded by GBC.

Project funding summary £

GBC Funded (£10.2k +£7.5k) £17,700
FCC Communities Net Grant (£94.5k - £10.2k GBC | £84,300
Contribution.)
Total capital costs of project £102,000

Page 15



4.2 Revenue

In addition the general maintenance and upkeep of the play area will be
met from a new revenue maintenance budget of £1,800 per annum for
audit and inspections and general repairs.

Appendices

1. Conway Park Development Plan

2. FCC Communities Grant approval and offer letter

3. Funding bid match funding confirmation letter [FCC Communities]

Background Papers

Reasons for Recommendations

The local residents will; benefit from a new Play Area. This will provide
provision in an area that is currently deficient. The development is
compliant with the Council’s current Local Plan under the heading ‘Healthy
Lifestyles’

Improve health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities
Support physically active lifestyles

Increase recreational activities and users to parks and open spaces
Reduce levels of loneliness and isolation

Page 16



Nottinghamshire

County Council

CONWAY PARK

/T obed

Landscape and Reclamation Team

Nottinghamshire County Council
County Hall

Loughborough Road
Nottingham

NG2 7QP



8T abed

9102 yosep :ejeq aidsali9 Auje)d
610z AInr :e1eQ boilg epuewy

S301AN3IddV
S3ON3H343d
S1S0O

NOIS3A INITLNO
NOILONAOYLNI

:parosddy
uoyny

0'G
oYy
o€
0¢
0l

SjUdU0H)



6T obed

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Scope of Report

1.1 Conway Park lies to the east of Carlton, and is located between the Nottingham-Lincoln
railway line and Conway Road. Maintained by Gedling Borough Council, and containing formal
sports facilities (tennis courts and bowling greens), as well as an imposing brick built pavilion
building, the park is nonetheless rather dated and does not appear well-used. It also lacks the
facilities now expected by a proportion of the park visiting public eg. toilets, refreshments, and a

children's play area.

1.2  Nottinghamshire County Council's Landscape and Reclamation team has reviewed the
existing amenities and proposed a development plan which retains the basic structure of the
park but proposes options for refreshing the original amenities, encouraging increased use, and
visits from a wider spectrum of the public whilst being mindful of ongoing maintenance costs in a

constrained financial climate.
Existing Condition

1.2  The existing park shows clearly the original design concept; built in the inter-war years 7?7
to support the expansion of Carlton and provide local amenities, the layout and facilities reflect
the planning and recreational aims of the time. A substantial brick pavilion is situated between
two large bowling greens and six surfaced tennis courts; the remaining space is laid to lawn and
occasional tree planting with a small and more formal paved sitting area to the south of the
bowling greens. Maintenance is at a level that maintains the status quo, but is limited to grass
cutting and general tidiness. The pavilion has ramped access but it is understood that finding
regular users and associated revenue streams is difficult. Hardstanding is restricted to a large
area of tarmac around the pavilion, and a small seating area to the east of the bowling greens;

there is no all-weather route around the park, and seats are randomly located.

1.3 In the modern context the layout is not readily suited contemporary needs; the bowling
greens and tennis court are still used, but in conjunction with the centrally placed pavilion, take
up a large proportion of the central space. If the courts and greens are to be retained, future
development or the installation of new amenities will have to be restricted to the narrow areas on
the periphery of the park. However, one positive feature of the park is that the land is flat, so

maintaining suitable gradients for access is not an issue.

View from main entrance towards pavilion

View of pavilion from south-west corner



0z abed

S1NOJ SIUUS) JO Y1IOU O} SO8.) 8injeLl pue SSeic)

§ 5 g 1 \ ;
Y f )
e A a \;’%

S18JJU0D BoURUB)UIRL MO] Y)IM BaJe Bupess Busixg

Bupped pajeubisag

SNUBAY/a0oUBLUT

Bunueid aal) ypm sease mopesi

eale Buijess papeys pue papn|oas ‘aoella ]

WwAB ynpy

jjem BoQ

punoibAeld s,uaipjiyo ‘Be ajdoad BunoA 1o} sanjioe

(Bunyiem Bop ‘WAB jnpe 63) AyAiloe pajeloosse Ypm ‘yied Jayjeam-||y

sainjeay ubisap ay

€

uBisag auipnQO

:mojeq passnosip aJe sjesodoud auijjno ay

"pul 0} JaISes 8q |[IM JUSWHLULIOD SNUSASI pUE Jasn e sajjuswe paroidul yum Juswdojoasp Jo

suojsuswip jeaisAyd ayy uo Ajuewnd sassnooy yolym ‘podai sy} Jo 8doos ay) puoksq pasopisuod

S| Inq passnosip ueaq sey uoljiAed 8y} a0} weal)s snusaaas e Buisies Jo enssl ay| Z'2
saoeds ||e Jo asn osiwndo o} JnoAe| yjed Jayjeam-||e Jo uonanpoujul )

oljgnd
aJow pue papnjoss ‘sededs |jews pue obie| Jo A)sioAIp Jajealb ajealo o) soeds esijeuonel °
Ayisiaaip [eaibojooe aaoidwil °
seale Bupyed Jeds pue ssaooe asiwndo o) Buipue)s-piey ssijeuonel °
Bunue|d sai) mou yum saal) ainjew Jo ssoj sjedionue °

(gn)o spmog "69)
sJesn Bunsixe Buibeinoous [|is isiiym sdnoib abe mau j1oeIye 0} SaINjes) JO UoONPOAUl °
djqeuresns aq 0} sainjea) Mau ‘soueuUSUIEW [SAS] MO| 10} dAlRIadWI panupuod e °
ainjonuseljul yied Bupsixe 0) 9oueqIN)SIp |eWIUIW pue ‘saln}es) Bupnsixe Jo uonualal °
:pui ul swie Buimo|o) 8y} yum padojonap sem ubisep sulpno syl L2
swly ubisaqg
NOIS3d 3ININLNO 02



T¢ obed

All-Weather Path

2.4  An all -weather path running around the edge of the park would enable use of spaces that
are otherwise incidental, and this proposal is considered essential to encouraging greater use of
the park by all ages and mobilities. The park benefits from the key facilities of the bowling
greens and tennis courts, but appears rarely used on a more casual basis. The area between
the tennis courts and rear gardens of Conway Crescent is mown and contains mature specimen
trees, but the approaches, through pinch points between the boundary fence and tennis courts,
are uninviting. With walking for health encouraged for all ages, the simple provision of a path to
provide a circuit, and with associated activities such as adult gym equipment or trim trail, and dog
bins, would both open up less-used areas of the park and give greater opportunity for low key,

informal recreation.

2.5 It is also suggested that a different maintenance regime is adopted here; Woodthorpe
Park has had some success reducing the area of mown grass through the sowing of flower
meadows. The proposed user groups would not require formality or exacting maintenance;
ecological diversity would also be improved and a programme of additional tree planting should
be undertaken to anticipate the loss of mature specimens and provide more screening to the

neighbouring houses.
Facilities for Young People

2.6 Gedling's Green Space Strategy ! analysed the standard of play facilities and access
across the borough, and concluded that there are large areas of the borough that do not meet
national standards. The wards of Valley, Carlton and Carlton Hill (to the immediate north and
west of Conway Road) were identified as being particularly deficient (at the time the study was
carried out a large section of Conway Road fell into the Gedling ward which may have skewed
results). The study concludes that where there is the highest deficiency of play facilities and a
high proportion of young people, GBC should aim to place facilities within amenity green space

or parks and gardens where there is currently none.

2.7 Conway Park currently caters largely for the older age groups and for more traditional
forms of sport (tennis and bowling). Further analysis of census data and local need, and local
consultation would be required to identify what types of formal play and/or activity are most
suited to the locality. The outline design layout shows a children's playground; the site is
located near housing and is fairly visible from the road. Activities for other age groups could be

appropriate.

Pads 0

View from pavilion to entrance

:. 'J‘,
o i
: I
', S

Western corner



2¢ obed

“JusLwiaje
yoes Joj 5109 saAleslpul oAb | xipuaddy ui ajge} eyl "ejqe|ieAe sewosaq Buipuny se Buiseyd
0} j|as) spus| juswudojorap pue sjuswale ajqeynuspl ol UMop uayoiq Aipeas aie sjesodoid
8yl ‘uoneynsuod o] }0algns pue ‘ease au} ui uoisiaosd Aejd pue [euonesioal Jayyo ‘olydesbowsp
[eD0] BY} JO IXSJUCO By} Ul paulWexs 8q 0} Spasu juswdojsAsp JO aJnjeu Joexo ayj Z'€

‘poouyunoqybiau ey} Jo} Ayunuoddo
[euoneaioas sseasoul Ajesib pinom ‘sanjioe) Buisixe jo uopeibajul Jajealb pue ssaiuswe
uIspow 8I0W ||oM S ‘UONeINDJID pue SS822B Ul JUSWI)SSAU| "YIj9de) B 0} j|as)l spus| ed
8y} ‘SS0J0 0) Speod Jolew ou yum ‘s}aauls |euapisal AgJeau wouy ajqissaooe Ajlpeal Buleg  |'¢

NOISNTONOD 0°¢

"paysijge)ss uasq sey sjdiound sy} 85U0 [0U0D pue
¥wi| o3 ynousip oq 6w Buppied fenseo ‘suopouysal Buped asodwi 0} usye) aq JyBiw uoisioap
B ‘JOASMOH "SS800E [I0UN0D pue aoueusjulew Buisiwoidwos noyym Bupped [euonippe
Jo} Buipuejs-piey Bupsixe auy) ulyym soeds s) aseyy Jeyy smoys ueid ayj Buiping sy o)
Jusoelpe Bupjied pue sss00e JEINDIYSA PaSU PSNUBUOD & S| a18y) Jey) pajoadxe s| )i Ajuanbasuod
pue senssi Ajjiqow Yum siesn 1oy payipow usaq Auealo sey uojjiaed eyl 0} SSeddyY t1°2

Bupjied pajeubisaq

"‘ANIqIsIA Jejealb aAIb 0) sAup 8y} JO opIs Jaylie uo sselb Jo Juslwia)ejsulal pue Saal) SNUSAR
Jajje} yum Bunuerdal pue ‘sqniys pue seal) Buisixa Jo [eAowal jsebbns sjesodoud ay)] €1z
"SOWN|OA

oljesy aseaioul 0} Aj@i| si sued ay) Jo uonessuabal se Ajeoadss ‘papirocid aq 0} spasu Aem)ooy
pojedipep e salj} ulepow ul Inqg [eulblio aq o) seadde sbuibps aAup eyl "ssidoued moj Jisy)

Aq painosqo Ajed mou si yued ay) ojul malA ay) Ing ‘jeulbuo s/ “ds Jajsesuojon Aqqniys Jo aul|

8|qnop 8y} Jayjeym Jesoun st )|  “uoljired ay) o} Jybiesjs Buipes| snusAe pue asuesuS PajeIo
Allenusd ay) yum ‘noke| ubisop |euibuo sy} Auesjo smoys yied sy jo ueid sujno syl Z1°2

aouenuy

"@oeds 8y Jo asn wnuwdo Bupjew yied snonuis e s)eald 0) Alepunog ayis pue usaib Buimoq
9y} usamiaq aoeds JusiolNs pue ‘saal) uswioads ainjew ase asay) ‘uleby -edusuadxe ded
[{e19A0 SY} 0} 810W 8)NQUIUOD PINOCD ey} aoeds JBA0-Ya), Jayjoue s| suaalb Bulmog ay) jo jsam
8y o} BulA| pue| ayj Aysionp |eoibojooe pue Aiosuss ‘|ensiA 9sealoul 0} pue ‘) psau Ajeal
Jey) seale uo suofjelado Buimow sseib oy} snooj 0} Yoq S| Seale Mopeswl Jo Uonesid syl L'z

mopes|y

"JB)|aYS pue 2INSO|OUd JO BSUBS
Jojealb e ajeasd osje pjnom (Auepunoq auj Aemjies sy buoje) Buness ay) puiyaq Bunueld iojje)
pue sejobiad ay) -ssoeds olgnd aiow yum Buiisesuod SOA0O[e papn|oas Ym seale Buness
palleA alow 8jeald pue ‘spaq pasiel yym sselb aoejdas 0} swie ubisepal y ‘esodind Jtespo

ou yum yjed pue sselb Jo sjq wopues sasudwos ng ‘Api si ease Buness Buysixs syl 01z

"90B.18) JO SUOI}09S OM)
8y} Bunjuyj ulod [eo0) B ©q Os|e pjnom )]  “sjue|d Buiquuio Joy Ajunpoddo ue osje pue ‘Aep wiem e
uo uns ay} wouj jaljal apiroid pjnom ejobiad e Jo asn  “Jses-yinos ay) o) eale Buness papelbdn
pue psoueyus ue o} payull pue ‘ease Bupued ay) WO} JUSIXe BWOS 0} pausaslds ‘uoijiaed ay)
jo uoneasie ursynos sy} bumnge Ajoalip ease paaed Aluo-ueuisepad e jsobbns sjesodoid sy
"Jsea-yjnos ay} o} eale Buness Bunsixs ay} 0} osje pue ‘susaib sy} 0} Apoadip uolired ayy Bupul
soels) Buloej-yinos e Jo uoneald ay) pue Hupued pejeubisep Joy Yjoq aoeds jusiolyns s| a1y}
ey} smoys ubisap aulpno ay) ‘susaib Buymoqg ay) o} ss920e pue uoijaed ay) Jo 8sh panuUOD
Joj yuepodw Apes|o s SS800€ JBINJIYSA ISIIYM  Hed 8y} JO uoiouny |[eJ9A0 8y} Ojul ‘Oeulie)
jo eas e ul Buipue)s Ajjuaund ‘uoljiaed ay) s)esbajul 0) sem swie ubisep swud sy JosuQ 62

ealy Buneeg/eseaia]

"JUS)IX8 BWOS 0} INoIABYS(
[e100S-[jUB |OJJUOD [[IM UDIYMm peod 8y} woly S|qISIA Aliej SI pue ‘Aup Ulew 8y} LUOoJ) passeaoe
Alipeal aq ueo ‘suealb Buimoq ay) wouy Aeme Buiaq jo sabejueape sey osie ) Ing -Ajioe)
Mmau e ajepowiwiodde o} ybnous abie| yied ay) ul aoeds Ajuo ay) Buieq sy} ‘peod 8y} pue suUNoD
siuue)} sy} ussmiaq saiiioe} abeusayAe|d oy uoneoo| e Amuapl siesodosd auno 8y 8¢



¢¢ obed

APPENDIX 1 - INDICATIVE COSTS

1 Clearance works including tree sur 0,000.00
2 Play Area - groundworks, supply of equipment and installation 65,000.00
3 Safety surfacing, 375 m?* @ £75 28,125.00
4 Trim trail - equipment and installation, 5 items @ £2500 12,500.00
5 Terrace & Bowling green paths — slab paving 1125 m?@ £65 73,125.00
6 Pergola 20,000.00
7 Seating - seats and installation 10 no @ £400 4,000.00
8 Tree planting - 25 no @ £400 10,000.00
9 Signage 3,000.00
10 | Stone access paths 200 linm @ £55 11,000.00
11 | Block paving to vehicular area 250 m? @ £80 20,000.00
12 | Block paving to pedestrian area 140 m? @ £70 9,800.00
13 | Resurfacing tarmac vehicle access 645m? @ £40 25,800.00
14 | Resurface top course tennis courts 3975 m? @ £50 198,750.00
15 | Refurbish Bowling Green's x 1.5 @ £35,000 52,500.00
16 | Meadow seeding and preparation 4,000.00

SUB-TOTAL 548,850.00

10% project contingency 54,885.00

Design fees, contract procurement and management (approx. 7.85%) 43,000.00

GRAND TOTAL 646,735.00




vz abed

- e

wune) &uneg aaysusybunione

08 08 00S 0OED :18L

! 89 ZON ‘WeUCumON ‘Psoyiplia 1Sem
"PeY %04 “esnoH ebpig JuesL
Tounog Amos)
m'@
1

O  001/490HHHJMT
g ] on Buwmg

i ..a|m :; W@ 0sE |

wew) | ewos)

§1Y80d0Hd AHYNIWIT=Hd

LT

IR PR LI A

l
|

] mwﬂ

MHVYd AVMNOD

et (7]
e (o]
wtnsrmnms [
iy ||
—~—

mm

=

Aoy

& >y

9 \‘-. -
. ™ N, o
; . i \\\
4 B 7 i,
\\ 3 Vi
4
'95n09 30e}ins def ooeiday ‘-\ / /
\\\,/
Vi

NIV SLUN0Y SINNAL

N Yy,

\'-.

B,

)
G ,/

2 &aoeuns sayjeam-je o} syjed jeisydusd o
", @peibidn ‘asn Jo) pauejar susaub Buimog g

Juness pue Guyueld
‘yed jo Jautos pasnigpun
W v BSRe MOPEaLU 8183l
MO

o e .
SNIqWO - |
R

< ////,I/
S
N % // &)

Uiy
e;‘nga’a 61 |euonippe [elol
1ue|<’:i/sa{n e BuBipay Buysixe uipid
7/ A AuvaNNnog dyou
s { s
YoV Kemdbeyied G
#95Ppe of Buired xao:q\p‘ua 3 'ﬁ:@quss%viiv
/ pugyes pancIduirg) apis auo Ud”
g IS 'uaaib Buymby pue eare
{

s

BIAY

d o) ghafiesio iy Lolaed £ Uoeoidde
pauejuiewy Ajises pue o

S981) SNueAe sqnui o0e|d
LN3 NIV

STVS0dOd 40 S3IOVNI - Z XIANIddVY



Gz abed

VIEWPOINT 1

ENTRANCE

View into park from Conway Road, dedicated
footway and parking spaces improve pedestrian
safety and circulation. Block paving replaces tar-

mac.

Nottinghamshire

¥ 1 County Council



9z abed

[IDuUno) Auno)
axrysureyBuI}Ion

e iy,
Al
P

R

Alepunoq uiajses Suoje esse 13inb pue ejodJad
lapun eaJe papeys 0] Ui "uoljiaed Jo apis uld
-l1N0S Uo eale Sunyis pajedipap pue Suiaed maN

PvHUIL

¢ LNIOdM3IA




/¢ abed

VIEWPOINT 3

i Pergola with climbers provides shaded area lad-

ing to quiet sitting area with raised beds and
views over bowling greens.

Nottinghamshire
County Council




gz abed

[Iouno) Ajuno)
axrysureyburlion

[T

Jad s1nD Jama} 3] MOpesUl, Se Ya| S| 3)is Jo a8pd
0} sselo "suiq sop pue juawdinbs WAS jnpe
Yum ‘SUNOD SiUUl) Jo 93ps punoie spes| Yied

NTVYM DOA/ALIAILY

¥ LNIOdM3IA



VIEWPOINT 5

62 abed

CHILDRENS PLAY AREA

New paths link entrance and parking area to

childrens play area catering for ages 3—13.

% Nottinghamshire
: County Council



o€ abed

[rouno) Ajuno) C5
sarysureyBburjoN %

"€ T—¢ Sage Joj Fulialed eale Ae|d sualpliyo

0] eaJe 3upjied pue aduesuad yui| syled maN

VIHY AV1d SNIUATIHO

F

¥,
Yy 4

4
MEIREDIDI D
sEdd il

Yy A
r f 4]
'I

f

'| THII".!H‘P"..‘ -,-E[-.-uil .L. 1 r--l-ll'llf: ‘l'|[]',i"i|‘|'f.”!'.|.|| “[fhl]l] -
]i-;.l.l.h.'.. 1| ( r_l”"'.l \ |! e J 4

181

Wil

EHTTITITITIT
iIJ;!HI.l.II[.L.‘ll

] | 1
| B

9 INIOdM3IA



T¢ obed

4.0 REFERENCES

1. Gedling Borough Council, Green Space Strategy 2012 - 2017



Page 32



>»

e
1 OO

Communities
Foundation

Ms Jennifer Eurge

St Georges Centre
Netherfield

Nottingham
Nottinghamshire

United Kingdom (England)
NG4 2NN

Dear Ms Eurge

Netherfield - Conway Park Play Area

Unit 1E

Snetterton Business Park

Snetterton
Norwich
Norfolk
NRI16 2JU

Tel

Web

01953 717165
Email info@icccommunitiesfoundation.org.uk
fcccommunitiesfoundation.org.uk

06 June 2019
Our Ref: CF-1488

The above application for funding has now been reviewed and assessed. | am pleased to inform you
that the Board of Directors of FCC Communities Foundation have allocated a grant of up to
£94,486.91 towards the eligible costs of your project.

This allocation is subject to the following conditions:

1. Your project is successfully registered with the scheme's regulator ENTRUST. We will apply

for this registration on your behalf.

2. Your agreement to our terms and conditions for distributing the Landfill Communities Fund
money. These will be stated in our Funding Agreement that will be issued to you providing
your project is registered by ENTRUST and once all of the information listed below has been

provided.

3. Payment of £10,157.34 third party funding. Within the next 7 days we will issue your
nominated contributor with a request for payment of the third party funding to FCC Recycling
(UK) Ltd. Payment of this request must be made within 28 days of issue.

4. That the grant is offset towards the following elements:

Description Total Cost (£) Amount Requested
(£)

Signage £600.00 £600.00

seating £4,000.00 £4,000.00

Design and Contract £7,558.95 £0.00

Administration Costs

Safety Surface Area 2 £9,655.91 £9,655.91

tree/shrubbery planting £180.00 £180.00

Play Area 1 equipment and £28,700.00 £28,700.00

Installation

Safety Surface Area 1 £13,596.00 £13,596.00

re-seeding of grass area following £2,000.00 £2,000.00

works to play area

Pathway leading to Play Area £9,135.00 £9,135.00

clearance of site £2,020.00 £2,020.00

Play Area 2 equipment and £24,600.00 £24,600.00

installation

»>»

~re Page 33
1 Y%

Environment

Registered in England No. 33688008




[ Total £102,045.86 | £94,486.91 |

In order for us to be able to issue your project with a Funding Agreement we require the additional
information as set out in the email to which this letter is attached. Please forward the outstanding
information within the next 8 weeks. If you are unable to do so please let us know as soon as
possible when you anticipate the information will be available.

Please note you must not change the scope or delivery of your project without written permission from
us. If you need to change any aspect of your project, or you register with ENTRUST as an
Environmental Body, please contact me or your Grant Administrator who will be able to advise you
further. Failure to inform us of changes may result in your funding being withdrawn.

On receipt of all outstanding information we will contact you to discuss the drawdown of your grant
and the details we need to finalise and issue your Funding Agreement.

It is very important that you do not start work on your project, instruct contractors or
make/authorise any payments relating to your project until you have signed and returned our
Funding Agreement. Failure to do so will result in your grant being withdrawn.

Please note, on receipt of all outstanding information it can take up to 4 weeks to issue your Funding
Agreement.

The grant offer is open for 6 months from the date of this letter, by which time your Funding
Agreement must be issued. Please also note that our grant must be claimed in full before 6
June 2020.

You are encouraged to publicise your funding award and advice on doing this can be found in the
enclosed guidance. Please contact us if you need further information.

If you have any queries regarding the content of this letter or would like to discuss any project related
queries, please contact myself or the Grant Administrator.

Yours sincerely

Cheryl Raynor
Grant Manager

Enc Funding Success Guidance
Publicity Guidance

Page 34



Agenda Iltem 6

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Gedling Borough Statement of Community Involvement August 2019
Date: 5th September 2019

Author:  Service Manager Planning Policy

Wards Affected

All

Purpose

To seek approval for the adoption of the attached Gedling Borough Statement
of Community Involvement.

Key Decision

Yes

Recommendation(s)
THAT:

1) Cabinet adopts the attached Statement of Community
Involvement August 2019

1 Background

1.1 ltis alegal requirement for Gedling Borough to have in place a
Statement of Community Involvement setting out the Council’s policy for
involving people in the preparation of development plans and for
consulting people on planning applications. Gedling Borough Council
adopted its first Statement of Community Involvement in October 2006
with a revised version being adopted in 2014.

Page 35



1.2

1.3

2.2

2.3

The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been revised in
order to reflect recent changes to the planning system. In particular
there is a requirement for the Council to include its policy on supporting
neighbourhood plan making in the Borough. Revisions are also required
to reflect current good practice. It is also opportune to revise the SCI at
this time as the review of the Aligned Core Strategy (ACS) adopted in
2014 has commenced with a consultation on an issues and options
document planned to take place in the near future. It has also been
changed in the light of comments made on a consultation draft version
made available earlier this year (see below). The revised SCl is
attached as Appendix A. The new text included to reflect changes
made since the previous 2014 version of the SCI are underlined for
convenience. The recommendation is to approve the whole SCI
document.

The draft SCI document was subject to consultation between 29t May
and 28" June 2019. A number of comments have been received. A
summary of the comments and the Council’s response is attached as
Appendix B. The revisions will continue to ensure that the level
consultation to be carried out will meet or exceed the minimum statutory
requirements set out by government.

Proposal

The revised SCl is attached as Appendix A and Cabinet is asked to
approve the document.

Respondents made a number of comments including some which were
supportive in nature. Certain comments related to general planning
matters such as the decision making process, environmental protections
and developer contributions as opposed to seeking changes to the
document. General comments included the need to avoid jargon and to
explain certain terms. This point is accepted and unnecessary jargon
has therefore been removed and other terms defined in a glossary.
Consultees requested that certain sections of the text (as it relates to
early engagement and the streamlining of the local plan) reflect more
fully the wording in the National Planning Policy Guidance and this has
also been accepted.

Other more specific comments have led to changes in the document and
the changes are set out in the Council’s response to the individual
comments. The schedule also sets out reasons why other comments
seeking changes have not been accepted. In summary, the consultation
has led to a number of changes to the SCI and as stated above the SCI

Page 36



3.1

41

5.1

5.2

6.1

will continue to set out a level of consultation which meets or exceeds
the minimum legal requirements.

Alternative Options

One alternative option is to rely on the existing adopted SCI (2014).
However, this is not up to date and does not reflect the latest
government guidance. It would also be timely to adopt a revised
document in time to be used for the planned ACS review issues and
options consultation.

Financial Implications

None.

Appendices

Appendix A - Gedling Borough Statement of Community Involvement
August 2019

Appendix B — Summary of comments made on the draft Statement of
Community Involvement May 2019 and the Council’s response.

Background Papers

None

Reasons for Recommendations

Page 37



7.1 To approve the Gedling Borough Statement of Community Involvement
August 2019

Page 38



GEDLING BOROUGH
Consultation Draft Statement of Community
Involvement

Cabinet Version 5'" September 2019

Planning Policy Section
Gedling Borough Council
Civic Centre

Arnot Hill Park

Arnold

Nottingham

NG5 6LU

Tel: 0115 901 3757
planningpolicy@gedling.gov.uk

Gedling

Borough Council

www.gedling.gov.uk

Page 39


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/

SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

1.1

2.1

Introduction

This Statement of Community Involvement sets out our policies on community
consultation and involvement in planning policy documents and planning applications.
This Statement replaces the adopted version of the Statement of Community
Involvement (called Statement of Consultation) adopted in 2014. It exceeds the
minimum legal requirements for consultation set out in the Planning Acts and
regulations. A glossary of terms used in the document is attached at Appendix 2 to

help the reader.

Planning Policy

The Local Plan (formerly Local Development Framework)

The Local Plan sets out how the Borough will develop in the future. It comprises a set
of planning documents collectively called Development Plan Documents and in
combination this constitutes the development plan as shown in the diagram below.
These plans are subject to a statutory process including community involvement. They
must be supported by a sustainability appraisal, equalities impact assessment and

subject to an independent examination.

The Local Plan

\
) \
;\ -
DeV elopme " 4
eme
sch LO cal

E plan
)
supptement™ -
“"\-\“g
Pt\)?:cume“‘s \

‘_‘\,,’//- -
- Neighbourhood
P;::\:::;;}“g P Iealgs ournoo
repo™t .
/f — —

Page 40

— Ote
' CS“ a’i.eg\.’

X Coca\ ;
'\ P\a“n\“g L
pocume®

| otner
4 Devel®
Plan

p“\e\'\‘-

& enisS:
2s Reou\r®



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Local Plans containing strateqic policies

2.2 The National Planning Policy Framework states that: the development plan must
include strategic policies which can be contained in joint or individual local plans by
authorities working together or independently. In the context of the Greater Nottingham
area the individual councils are working together to align core strategies containing key
strategic policies with each authority responsible for its own individual core strategy
(known as part 1 Local Plans - please see paragraph 2.10 for more details).

2.3 Strategic policies should set out the overall strateqy for the pattern, scale and quality of
development including for:
Housing, employment, retail, leisure and other commercial development;
infrastructure or transport;
Community facilities; and
Conservation and enhancement of the natural, built and historic environment.

Local Plans containing non-strateqic policies and Neighbourhood Plans

2.4 The NPPF goes on to state that: policies to address non-strategic matters should be
included in local plans that contain both strategic policies and non-strategic policies;
and/or neighbourhood plans that contain just non-strategic policies. Non-strategic
policies set out more detailed policies for specific areas, neighbourhoods or types of
development.

2.5 In addition to their core strateqgies, the Greater Nottingham councils have included
planning policies of both a strategic and non-strategic nature in more detailed local
plans (called Part 2 Local Plans - please see paragraph 2.12 for more details).

2.6 A number of Neighbourhood Plans have been made in Gedling Borough which contain
non-strategic policies. These are prepared by Parish Councils or Neighbourhood
Planning Forums who are largely responsible for their production. However, Gedling
Borough Council provides a supporting role including carrying out the formal
consultation and in doing so Gedling Borough Council will follow the principles set out
for consulting on Local Plans in paragraph 2.9 below. For more detail on which
Parishes are covered by neighbourhood Plans and Gedling Borough Council’s
approach to supporting their preparation see paragraphs 2.14 — 2.16.’

Supplementary Planning Documents

2.7 Supplementary Planning Documents give further explanation and detail to the Local
Plan. They are subject to statutory procedures including community involvement but
are not subject to independent examination.

2.8 Other documents that support a Local Plan include:

e Local Development Scheme - sets out the programme for the preparation of the
Local Plan and also lists supplementary planning documents to be prepared
e Statement of Community Involvement (this document)

Page 41 3



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

e Authority Monitoring Report

Principles

2.9 We will abide by the following principles when consulting on the Local Plan:

e Plans should be shaped by early proportionate and effective engagement with
communities, organisations, businesses and other consultees;

¢ Consultation will be transparent, open and accessible to all sections of the
community, enabling the community to engage with the planning system, not just
those who are familiar with it;

e The consultation process will allow local communities and consultees to see how
ideas have developed at various stages with effective feedback and;

o Wherever possible, consultation will be carried out in tandem with other
community engagement initiatives.

Consultation on Development Plan Documents (DPDs) and Supplementary
Planning Documents (SPDs)

2.10 Gedling Borough Council along with Broxtowe Borough Council and Nottingham City
Council have prepared the Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies (ACS) which
forms Part 1 of the Local Plan for each of the three councils. The other councils within
the Greater Nottingham Housing Market Area, namely Erewash Borough and Rushcliffe
Borough, have produced separate but aligned Core Strategies.

2.11 The Greater Nottingham councils are now undertaking a review of the Aligned Core
Strategies to an agreed timetable. The history of joint working and achievements in
producing Aligned Core Strategies demonstrate that there is an established and
successful model of joint working across the Nottingham Housing Market Area and this
is set to continue. The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 has introduced a
requirement for councils to prepare a Statement of Common Ground to identify cross
boundary matters and set out how they will be addressed.

2.12 Gedling Borough Council adopted the Local Planning Document on 18 July 2018 which
forms Part 2 of the Council’s Local Plan and conforms to the Aligned Core Strategy. A
review of the Local Planning Document will follow on from the review of the Aligned
Core Strategy and the timetable will be published at an appropriate time in the future.

2.13 The Government does not set out precise detail of how a council should prepare a plan
but rather considers councils are best placed to decide the exact process and how to
engage with their communities. However, the Regulations' do prescribe certain stages
where the public are to be consulted and this is shown in Appendix 1. Essentially the
consultation policy will be the same for both Development Plan Documents (like the
Gedling Borough Local Planning Document) and for Supplementary Planning

" The Regulations are set out in The Town and Country Planning, (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
as amended.

Page 42 4



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Documents. However, there are slight differences between the two as Supplementary
Planning Documents are not subject to the formal examination process.

Who we will consult

For Development Plan Documents

Statutory organisations? including councils, infrastructure providers and government
bodies as legally required or those likely to have an interest;

Organisations representing local geographical, economic, social and other
communities or those likely to have an interest;

Local businesses, voluntary and other organisations;

Others who have expressed an interest in the subject matter; and

The general public.

For Supplementary Planning Documents

Statutory organisations? including councils, infrastructure providers and government
bodies as legally required or those likely to have an interest;

Other consultees likely to have an interest;

The general public.

How we will consult

For Development Planning Documents

Before starting a consultation, we will prepare a consultation strategy;

We will contact statutory consultees and organisations and individuals registered
on the Planning Policy database direct;

We will publicise consultations by methods such as leaflets, websites, posters,
displays, commercial, community and social media, social network sites, existing
community groups, community events and joining with other consultations;

We will write to properties likely to be directly affected by an allocated site and put
up site notices around the site;

We will leave consultation documents on display at certain locations open to the
public like Council offices and libraries;

Consultation documents will be made available on Gedling Borough Council’s web
site;

We will consider organising events such as stakeholder meetings or workshops;
and

We will publish comments received and/or provide a summary as soon as possible.
We will explain how these comments have been considered when decisions are
taken; and at the discretion of the Service Manager Planning Policy, we will give
consultation documents to community groups, councils and statutory organisations;

2 Town and Country Planning, (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 as amended by The Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2012.
3 Statutory consultees are listed in the regulations referenced above.

Page 43 5



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

For Supplementary Planning Documents

o Before starting a consultation, we will prepare a consultation strategy;

o We will write to properties likely to be directly affected by an allocated site and put
up site notices around the site;

e We will contact appropriate organisations and individuals direct;

e We will publicise consultations by methods such as leaflets, websites, posters,
displays, commercial, community and social media, social network sites, existing
community groups, community events and joining with other consultations;

e We will leave consultation documents on display at certain locations open to the
public like Council offices and libraries;

e Consultation Documents will be made available on Gedling Borough Council’s
website ;

e We will consider organising events such as stakeholder meetings or workshops;
and

e We will publish comments received and/or provide a summary as soon as
possible. We will explain how these comments have been considered when
decisions are taken.

e At the discretion of the Service Manager Planning Policy, we will give consultation
documents to community groups, councils and statutory organisations;

When we will consult
For Development Plan Documents

o We will ask for views on issues, ideas and information from appropriate
organisations, individuals or communities;

e After considering the initial comments we will consult on documents which explain
issues to be considered and which may also include potential options;

e We will consider the need to prepare documents for additional consultation stages
setting out further options, information or a preferred option or other useful
content; and

e  We will formally publish the proposed submission document for at least six weeks
representations prior to independent examination.

For Supplementary Planning Documents

o We will ask for views on issues, ideas and information from appropriate
organisations, individuals on communities;

e After considering the initial comments we will carry out informal consultation;

e We will consult on a draft version of the Supplementary Planning Document for at
least four weeks; and

e We will adopt the Supplementary Planning Document and inform those who have
commented that this is the case.

Page 44 6



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Neighbourhood Planning Support

2.14 Gedling Borough Council is also obliged to provide assistance to Parish Councils or

Neighbourhood Forums to help them produce Neighbourhood Plans. The Council’s role

is set out in leqgislations which also prescribes certain statutory deadlines.

2.15 A number of Neighbourhood Plans have now been produced and form part of the

development plan including:

Burton Joyce Neighbourhood Plan;
Calverton Neighbourhood Plan;
Linby Neighbourhood Plan; and
Papplewick Neighbourhood Plan.

2.16 We will continue to support neighbourhood planning by:

Being proactive in providing information, mapping expertise and advice on strategic
environmental assessments;

Providing informal comments on draft documents in advance of statutory
consultations;

Fulfilling our duties and taking decisions as soon as possible and within the statutory
time periods, unless otherwise agreed;

Providing a clear and transparent decision making timetable on request;

Publishing the Submission Reqgulation 16 Neighbourhood Plan for a minimum of six
weeks and inviting representations; and

Constructively engaging with the Parish Council throughout the process including
when considering the recommendations of the independent examiner of a
Neighbourhood Development Plan or Order proposal.

Seldom Heard Groups

2.17 We are committed to providing fair and equal access to planning services. Resources
will be directed towards those ‘seldom heard groups’ identified in Equality assessments
to ensure those affected by the plan have a chance to be involved and to ensure we
meet our statutory obligations under equalities legislation.

2.18 We will ensure information is made available in a variety of formats, including Braille,
large print, and other languages on request.

4 Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015

Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016
Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management Procedure (Amendment) regulations 2017

Page 45 7


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/20/contents/made

SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Planning Applications

Planning decisions can often be controversial. There will often be good reasons for and
against any development and the Borough Council must apply planning criteria in a
reasonable manner. The important issue is to make the decision making process as
clear, transparent and inclusive as possible. It is important to realise that the number of
objections to a proposal is not a determining factor and applications can only be
refused for clear planning- related reasons. The Council can only take into account
“material planning considerations” when deciding planning applications. Guidance on
these considerations is set out in Appendix 3.

Gedling Borough Council is not responsible for determining all planning applications
within the Borough. Nottinghamshire County Council control certain categories of
applications, such as minerals and waste developments — and in these cases, they will
be responsible for any consultation.

Pre-application stage

The aim of pre-application consultation is to encourage discussion before a formal
application is made. The process can help to identify improvements and overcome
objections at a later stage. At the pre-application stage, we will:-

o Actively encourage and hold pre-application discussions with prospective
applicants whatever the scale proposed. Planning proposals such as those which
may give rise to local controversy, on sensitive sites or of a significant scale may
require wider communication and this will commence at the pre-application stage.
Consultation will be normally limited to technical consultees such as County
Highways, Environment Agency, and Conservation advice;

+ For the more significant applications, encourage applicants to engage with the
community including exhibitions and other events to publicise their proposals; and

Details of charges made for providing pre-application advice are set out on the Council’s
website.

Planning Application Stage

How we will publicise planning applications

We are required by law® to give publicity to all planning applications. The Borough
Council’s publicity policy for various categories of applications is set out in the following
table:-

5 Article 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

Page 46 8



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Type of Development

Publicity Required

Major development submitted with an
environmental statement;
Development affecting a public right of way

Posting of a site notice and
notice in a local newspaper.

Applications involving a departure from the
development plan;

Notice in local newspaper and
either a site notice or neighbour
notification letter.

Major Development
(a) 10 or more dwellings or where the
site is 1.0. ha or more; and
(b) for all other uses, floor space of 1000
$q. m or more or site area of 1 ha or
more.

Notice in local newspaper and
either a site notice or neighbour
notification letter.

Minor Development
(all other development)

Site notice or neighbour®
notification letter.

Amendments to Planning Applications
under an application made under Section
737.

As set out above.

Listed Buildings and development in
Conservation Areas

Notice in local newspaper and
site notice.

Appeals

People who have previously
made comments will be notified
by letter or e-mail as well as all
original consultees.

Applications for works to trees covered by

Site notice or neighbour

a Tree Preservation Order

notification letter.

How we will consult

e Anyone can comment not just those who have received a letter. All planning
applications are available for inspection at the Civic Centre in Arnold during office
hours or can be seen on the Public Access System on the Council's website8. The
availability of information on major planning applications will be considered on a
case by case basis and if it is judged necessary information will be made available
at places additional to the Civic Centre:

e We will consult various specialists and relevant organisations including statutory

8 Neighbouring properties include those directly adjoining the development site.

7 Under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application can be made to vary or remove
conditions associated with a planning permission. One of the uses of a section 73 application is to seek a minor
material amendment. Note non material amendments to planning applications will not be subject to further
consultation.

8 http://www.gedling.gov.uk/

Page 47 9


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/

SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

consultees® such as parish councils'?, the Environment Agency and Natural
England and other organisations as appropriate such as district and parish councils
which adjoin Gedling Borough.

e There is a statutory consultation period of 21 days and all comments must be
received within the specified consultation period. Comments can be sent by letter,
email or through the Planning Public Access System on the Council’s website. Only
those received through the Public Access System will be acknowledged as having
been received. Comments should consider ‘material planning considerations’ (see
Appendix 3 for further information).

Amendments to Applications

Where amendments to applications are negotiated and result in amended proposals,
additional consultation of between 7 and 14 days will be undertaken, unless the
amendments are very minor in nature and are not materially different to the original

plans.

The Decision

The Council decides many planning applications under delegated powers. Applications
which raise material planning objections will be referred to a panel of elected members
who recommend whether an application should be determined under delegated powers
or by Planning Committee. Applications that are for more than 9 dwellings or for
commercial developments over 5,000 square metres are dealt with by Planning
Committee. Any comments received on planning applications will be considered within
the Recommendation report. All reports are available for viewing on the Council’s
website.

The Borough Council provides an opportunity for residents and applicants to speak on
those applications determined by the Planning Committee. Only one speaker is
allowed in support and one in opposition of any proposal. Each speaker is allowed a
maximum of three minutes and this is carefully controlled by an Officer of the Council.

The applicant/agent will receive a decision notice detailing conditions and reasons for
approval or reasons for refusal. A copy of the decision notice is kept on file and is
available on the Council’s website.

3.10 To check on the progress of a planning application:

e Contact the case officer or call the duty planner on 0115 901 3719 or call in at the
Civic Centre

9 As set out in Schedule 4 to the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015.

10 Under the Neighbourhood Planning Act, Local Planning Authorities must also consult Neighbourhood Forums
on planning applications if they have been set up to produce a Neighbourhood Plan. Currently there are no
Neighbourhood Forums within Gedling Borough.

Page 48 10



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

4. Further Information

4.1 If you wish to know more about the Statement of Community Involvement or any aspect
of planning policy or planning applications, please contact us at the address shown
below. Information on the Aligned Core Strategy and the Local Planning Document and
the development plan process is also available on the Borough Council’s website.

By post: Gedling Borough Council
Planning and Economic Development
Civic Centre
Arnot Hill Park
Arnold
Nottingham
NG5 6LU

By telephone (0115) 901 3733 for planning policy
(0115) 901 3719 for planning applications

By e-mail: planningpolicy@gedling.gov.uk for planning policy.

P&EServiceSupport@gedling.gov.uk for planning applications.

Website: www.gedling.gov.uk

Please contact the Planning Policy section should you require information made
available in a variety of formats, including Braille, large print, and other languages.

Page 49 11


mailto:planningpolicy@gedling.gov.uk
mailto:P&EServiceSupport@gedling.gov.uk
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/

SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Appendix 1

Stages of preparation of a development plan document

Development Plan
Document Stage

Consultation

Early tasks

This stage involves the Council gathering evidence
including concerns and proposals the community may
wish to make regarding planning issues. This stage also
involves consultation on the Sustainability Appraisal
Scoping Report and Equalities Impact Assessment.

Pre-submission
(regulation 18)

This is a key stage of plan development and community
engagement is crucial. The Council will normally consult
on issues and options in the early stages of this process
and will continue to engage with stakeholders and the
community throughout the pre-submission stage using a
variety of methods.

Pre-submission
Consultation or
publication stage
(regulation 19)

This stage involves a formal consultation on the final
proposed submission document, when the Council will
invite all interested parties to submit representations.
The consultation will last six weeks. The Council will
consider any representations received.

Submission
(regulation 22)

The Council will formally submit the development plan
document to the Planning Inspectorate for independent
examination.

Examination Interested parties can seek to make representations to
the independent Planning Inspector.
Adoption This is a formal process for Gedling Borough Council to

adopt the document as part of the Local Plan.

Page 50

12



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Appendix 2

Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations

Adoption: The formal approval by a Council of the final version of a Development Plan
Document once the Inspector has found it sound.

Aligned Core Strateqy: The key strateqic plan for the area, setting out the long term vision
for the area, objectives and strategic policies for:

Housing, employment, retail, leisure and other commercial development;
Infrastructure for transport, telecommunications, utilities and flood risk etc.;

e Community facilities such as health and education; and

e Conservation and enhancement of the natural, built and historic environment

Authority Monitoring report (AMR): A report produced by local planning authorities
assessing progress with and the effectiveness of the Local Plan.

Core Strategy: see Aligned Core Strategy above.

Development Plan: This includes adopted Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans.

Development Plan Document: A spatial planning document which is part of the Local Plan,
subject to extensive consultation and independent examination;

Development Management: Development management describes the range of activities
and interactions in dealing with planning applications so that the control of development
becomes a more positive and proactive process.

Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA): A management tool that makes sure that policies and
working practices do not discriminate against certain groups and that opportunities are taken
to promote equality.

Housing Market Area (HMA): Geographical area defined by household demand and
preferences for housing. They reflect the key functional linkages between places where
people live and work. The Nottingham Core Housing Market Area consists of the council
areas of Broxtowe, Erewash, Gedling, Nottingham City and Rushcliffe, together with the
Hucknall part of Ashfield.

Local Development Scheme (LDS): A project plan setting out the timetable for the
preparation of planning documents.

Local Plan: The plan for the future development of the local area, drawn up by the local
planning authority in consultation with the community. For Gedling Borough Council the
Aligned Core Strateqy forms part 1 of the Local Plan and the Local Planning Document forms
part 2 of the Local Plan.

Page 51 13



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF): The NPPF sets out the Government’s
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It provides the
framework within which Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans can be produced.

Neighbourhood Plans: A plan prepared by a Parish Council or Neighbourhood Forum for a
particular neighbourhood area.

Nottingham Core Housing Market Area: See Housing Market Area above.

Planning Condition: A condition imposed on a grant of planning permission.

Planning Inspectorate (PINS): Independent agency which examines Local Plans to ensure
they are sound. Also decides planning appeals for individual planning applications.

Spatial Objectives: principles by which the Spatial Vision will be delivered.

Spatial Planning: Spatial planning goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring
together and integrate policies for the development and use of land with other policies and
programmes which influence the nature of places and how they function for example,
investment decisions which are not being delivered solely or mainly through the granting of
planning permission such as investment in university research programmes or health care.

Spatial Vision: A brief description of how an area will be changed by the end of a plan
period.

Statement of Common Ground: this is a document that local authorities use to identify
cross boundary planning issues and how they are to be addressed by the partner Councils
working together.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): A document which adds further detail to the
policies in the Local Plan. It can be used to provide further guidance for development on
specific sites, or on particular issues, such as design.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA): Examines the social, environmental and economic effects of
strategies and policies in a Local Plan from the beginning of its preparation

Page 52 14



SCI CABINET VERSION 05.09.2019

Appendix 3

Guidance on “Material Planning Considerations”

The Council can only take into account “material planning considerations” when deciding
planning applications. Examples of “material planning considerations” include:

e Residential amenity

e Highway safety and traffic;

e Design and appearance;

e |Impact on Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas, trees; and
e The planning policies of the Council.

Examples of non-planning issues include:

e Private property rights;

e Access for maintenance;

e Covenants;

e Loss of view;

e Property values,

e Competition; and

e Applicants morals or motives.

Page 53 15



This page is intentionally left blank



GG abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

Burton Joyce Parish
Council

The value of a
Neighbourhood Plan
has been brought into
question in terms of its
influence in planning
decision making. With
no statutory obligation
to take on board
comments made by
the Parish Council it
remains a consultee
as it did prior to the
NP with concerns
being no more than
“considered”.

The NP identified a
need for smaller
affordable housing but
this is not being
reflected in
development
approvals.
Applications are
deliberately staying
below the 15 houses
trigger.

This is a comment on
the weight given to
neighbourhood plans
relates to the
determination of
planning applications
rather than the
wording of the SCI. .
No change proposed.

The issue raised
concerning affordable
housing relates to the
determination of
planning applications
and not the SCI. No
change proposed.

Noted but the
threshold for
affordable housing is
not an SCOI matter.

Page 1




9G abed

Appendix B

at the pre-application
stage is too narrow.
Other organisations
such as the
Nottinghamshire
CPRE and
communities should
be consulted early in
the process. It should
not be left to the
applicants to carry out
pre-application
consultation as the
local authority can be
neutral. Early
involvement
minimizes the danger
of community
resentment later on.

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
CPRE Limiting consultation The NPPF stresses

the importance of
providing pre-
application advice
which can help speed
up the planning
process. ltis an
opportunity for the
LPA to identify issues
early on particularly of
a technical nature and
hence consultation is
normally limited to
technical consultees.
It is given on a non-
prejudicial basis and
does not bind the
decision of the
Planning Committee.
The planning
application will be
subject to separate
consultation including
with the community in
accord with the SCI.
No change.

Page 2




)G abed

Appendix B

the Council shall
consult appropriate
organisations on
Supplementary
Planning Documents
where development
plans have the
potential to affect the

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
CPRE GBC propose only to Preference is to
allow valid responses receive comments via
via the on-line system. the on-line system ,
This creates additional however, we will
barriers to accept
participation and representations sent
excludes those by e-mail or letter to
without access to a the address set out in
computer. A simple e- the SCI.
mail address should
be offered.
CPRE The reference to the Noted
dedicated phone
number for
Development
Management Services
is welcomed.
Highways England The SCI states that Agreed

Page 3




gG abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

integrity of the
Strategic Road
Network, Highways
England should be
consulted.

Highways England

Support pre-
application
engagement. In
Highways England
experience pre-
application
discussions where
appropriate provides
the applicant with the
opportunity to address
concerns prior to the
submission of the
planning application.

Noted.

Local Councillor

Queries what is meant
by the reference to
“other consultees
including the public as
appropriate”

It may not be
necessary to consult
with every consultee
depending on the
nature of the planning
application. However,
it is proposed to clarify
this point as follows: .
Change the bullets

Page 4




6G abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

directly under
paragraph 2.13 to:-

For Development Plan

Documents

e Statutory
organisations
including Councils,
infrastructure
providers and
government bodies
as legally required
or those likely to
have an interest;

e Organisations
representing local
geographical,
economic, social
and other
communities or
those likely to have
an interest;

e Local businesses,
voluntary and other
organisations;

e Others who have
expressed an

Page 5




09 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

interest in the
subject matter; and
e The general public.

For Supplementary

Planning Documents

e Statutory
organisations’
including councils,
infrastructure
providers and
government bodies
as legally required
or those likely to
have an interest;

e Other consultees
likely to have an
interest;

e The general public.

Local Councillor

| am concerned under
3.3 that no reference
is made to Parish
Councils especially
those with a

The NPPF stresses
the importance of
providing pre-
application advice
which can help speed

' Statutory consultees are listed in the regulations referenced above.

Page 6




T9 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

Neighbourhood Plan.
It seems to me that
much is decided at the
pre-application stage
when the community
has no input. What is
sure is that there
appears to be a
dialogue between
GBC and the
applicant which leads
to the applicant
putting forward an
application which they
know GBC will
support long before
the public have to be
involved!

up the planning
process. ltis an
opportunity for the
LPA to identify issues
early on particularly of
a technical nature and
hence consultation is
normally limited to
technical consultees.
Pre-application
professional advice is
given on an informal
non-prejudicial basis
and does not bind the
decision of the
Planning Committee.
The planning
application will be
subject to separate
consultation including
with the Parish
Councils in accord
with the SCI. No
change.

Local Councillor

| have been told that
the Parish Council

Speakers are
restricted to

Page 7




29 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

Management

representatives applicants, residents
cannot speak on and residents

behalf of their associations and

community but that is
not mentioned in the
draft. Hopefully if that
is the case from now
on they will have that
right.

limited to people who
have made written
comments. A
maximum of 3
minutes per speaker
is allowed, unless
extended at the Chair
of the Committee’s
discretion.

Local Councillor

Greater clarity is
needed regarding
making a
representation at a
GBC council meeting

in relation to speaking.

Request that Parish
Councils be notified of
objections to planning
applications raised by
neighbours as
practiced at N&SDC.

Request that
notifications are sent

Notifying Parish
Councils of objections
by neighbours would
be too onerous. A
summary of objections
are in the officer’s
report which is
available to view on-
line. Decision notices
are also available on
line. No change
proposed.

Page 8




g abed

Appendix B

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
to the PC when
decision notices are
issued with access to
stated conditions.
Local Resident OK OK OK Noted.

Local Resident

Environmental
protections should be
given high priority —
developers should be
aware that plans
should show where
existing habitat is to
be retained and
incorporated into
plans.

The Local Planning
Document identifies
biodiversity sites
including Local
Wildlife Sites and
SSSis are shown on
the Policies Map
which is available to
developers to inform
the preparation of
planning applications.
Information on Nature
conservation and
Geological sites is
also available on the
GBC webpage? under
the heading Natural
Environment. Policies
protecting Nature
Conservation sites are

2 http://www.gedling.gov.uk/resident/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningpolicy/

Page 9




79 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

included in the Local
Plan.

Planning applications
will be determined in
accordance with the
Local Plan. No
change required.

Local Resident

It would appear all
areas are covered

Ditto

It is better to have
community
involvement, and
whilst the document
refers to “unheard
groups” the Council
must ensure that all
residents of Gedling
are able to comment
in any way on
proposals.

Noted.

Local Resident

Section 2.2 use of the
word “may” in relation
to producing a core
strategy provides a let
out and should be
replaced by “will”

Paragraph 2.2
explains that
development plan
documents may
include certain types
of plans and Councils
have a degree of
choice over the types

Page 10




G9 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

of plan they choose to
prepare. However
agree that the NPPF
requires LPAs to
produce development
plans that must
include strategic
policies. Agree the
SCI will be reworded
to reflect guidance in
paragraph 17 of the
NPPF.

Local Resident

3.5 definition of
neighbours is an issue
and needs to be
clearer for example a
house behind could
be on a different
street.

Neighbouring
properties are
identified through the
Development
Management process
as being any directly
adjoining property to
the proposed
development site. No
change required.

Local Resident

The statement
generally makes good
sense. Refers to local
groups such as

Noted.

Page 11




99 abed

Appendix B

Preservation Society,
Friends of Gedling
Country Park and
Gedling House Woods
who may have a view
on local
developments.

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
Gedling Village

Local Resident

No comments

No comments

Concerns about only
one resident being
allowed to speak. In
the case of larger
developments it is not
always possible to
agree who should
speak greater
flexibility is required
over this. Likewise
the three minute ruling
on speaking needs
looking at.

The principle that one
speaker is allowed in
support of the
proposal and one
against is considered
good practice and one
in common use.
Speakers are
restricted to
applicants, residents
and residents
associations and
limited to people who
have made written
comments. A
maximum of 3
minutes per speaker
is allowed, unless
extended at the Chair

Page 12




]9 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

of the Committee’s
discretion. The
duration of three
minutes is adequate
to set out the key
objections. If more
than one person
wishes to address the
meeting, all parties
with a common
interest should
normally agree who
should represent them
or split the three
minutes between
them. It is important
to conduct business in
a timely matter and no
change required.

Local Resident

Section 2 strikes the
right balance

No

No

Noted.

Local Resident

No comments

Historic England
should be named as a
relevant organisation
where the application
is within any wider

No comments

Regulations set out
the requirements for
consulting with
Historic England in
relation to Historic
Parks and Listed

Page 13




g9 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

setting of Grade 2
Listed Building

Buildings. The
proposal to consult
Historic England on
proposals within the
wider setting of Grade
Il buildings is difficult
to interpret as there is
no accepted definition
of what constitutes the
“setting”. In any case
it is not considered
necessary and would
be somewhat
onerous. No change
required.

When amendments
are negotiated which
satisfies objections no
further consultation
will be undertaken.
Parish Councils
raising strong
objection especially in
relation to a material
considerations within
Conservation Areas
have no involvement

It is for the decision
maker to consider
whether objections
have been satisfied.
Requests for further
consultation would be
considered on a case
by case basis
depending upon the
nature of the
amendments.

Page 14




69 abed

Appendix B

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
in the negotiation There is no appeal
process. There is no process to an
appeal process to an independent body — a
independent body for matter which is
a PC to question the outside the scope of
decision. this document.
However, complaints
relating to the
planning application
process can be made
to the Local
Government
Ombudsman. No
change required.
Local Resident No No No Noted.

Local Resident

Nothing in section 2
refers to consulting on
the removal of trees
and hedges.

Pleased section 3.5
references nature
conservation.
However there is
nothing specific on
trees.

Quite a difficult read
for anyone unfamiliar
with the planning
process. Opportunity
to include trees under
their own heading.
They are not covered
adequately by
BREEAM standards
nor does the TPO
process give any
protection (only 207

Accept the SCI should
be more easily
readable through
removal of
unnecessary jargon
and explanation of
terms in a glossary.

It is not felt necessary
to have a separate
section on trees as
the document is

Page 15




0/ abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

media — surely contact
should be made with
local residents that will
be impacted.

Management

trees covered in the intended to cover

whole area). consultation on all

Including a section development.

specifically on trees Applications for work

will ensure developers | to trees protected by a

are not given a green | TPO are posted on a

light for destroying site notice and a

trees. neighbour letter sent
out. Agree to clarify
this point by amending
the table below
paragraph 3.5.

Local Resident No No Saw this on social For planning

applications, the SCI
commits the Council
to write to residents
immediately adjoining
a proposed
development site.

In relation to plan
making, in addition to
site notices residents
likely to be affected by
a proposed site
allocation would
receive a letter.

Page 16




T/ obed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

No change required.

Local Resident

This response was
recorded in section 6
of the feedback
questionnaire.
Despite having a
Neighbourhood Plan
for Calverton all
Planning seems to
respond to the
landowners rather
than the residents of
the village, even after
public meetings!

Paragraph 47 of the
NPPF states that:
Planning law requires
that applications for
planning permission
be determined in
accordance with the
development plan,
unless material
considerations
indicate otherwise.
The development plan
includes the ACS,
LPD and
Neighbourhood Plan.
Comments on
planning applications
are summarised and
addressed in the
officer’s report. No
change required.

Mellish RFC

No comments

No comments

No comments

Noted.

Page 17




¢/ abed

Appendix B

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
Natural England We are supportive of | We are supportive of | All planning Support welcomed

the principle of
meaningful and early
engagement of the
general community,
community
organisations and
statutory bodies in
local planning matters,
both in terms of
shaping policy.

the principle of
meaningful and early
engagement of the
general community,
community
organisations and
statutory bodies in
local planning matters
in participating in the
process of
determining planning
applications.

consultations are sent
electronically to the
central hub for our
planning and
development advisory
service at the
following address:
consultations@natural

england.org.uk

and consultation
contact details noted.

Nottingham North and
East CCG

Respondent assumes
CCG is included in the
statutory
organisations
however, health is not
mentioned anywhere
in the document.

It is confirmed that the
CCGisincluded as a
statutory consultee on
the planning policy
consultation database.
No change required.

Nottingham North and
East CCG

As set out in the
Nottinghamshire
Spatial Health
Framework 2019 —
2022 — early
engagement in the

Agree. Change the
wording of the first
bullet in paragraph 2.9
to read:

Page 18



mailto:consultations@naturalengland.org.uk
mailto:consultations@naturalengland.org.uk

¢) abed

Appendix B

Respondent Question 1 - Question 2 - Question 3 — general | GBC response
comments on the comments on the comments
section relating to section relating to
Planning Policy Development
Management
planning process is e Plans should
fundamental to ensure be shaped by
health and wellbeing early,
is fully embedded and proportionate and
will enable the effective
consideration of engagement with
health/social care communities,
infrastructure organisations,
requirements to meet businesses and
the needs of the other consultees.
population.
Nottingham North and Healthcare The Nottingham North

East CCG

contributions or
planning is not clear in
the document. We
would like the CCG to
be consulted on at the
earliest possible stage
for all applications
over 25 dwellings
direct to our generic
estates inbox:
noweccg.estates@nh
S.net.

We would also like
regular contact and

and East CCG is
consulted on all major
planning applications
which includes:

(@)10 or more
dwellings or
where the site is
0.5 ha or more;
and

(b) for all other
uses, floor
space of 1000
$Q. m or more
or site area of 1
ha or more.

Page 19




v/ abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

communications from
the planning team and
updates on status and
triggers of previously
requested S106
funds. Feel free to
contact the team on
the email address
above with any
queries.

Planning applications
can be tracked on the
Council’s on-line
system where officer
reports and decision
notices are publicly
available. Weekly
lists of planning
applications are also
available.

The CCGs are
encouraged to engage
with the local plan
preparation process at
the earliest
opportunity to make
the case for developer
contributions so that
they can be identified
in the local plan.

No change required.

Severn Trent

No objections

No objections

No objections

Noted.

Willow Farm Action
Group

Need to ensure that
planning jargon
contained in the

Agree — include a
glossary to the

Page 20




G, abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

document is more
clearly explained.

document and remove
unnecessary jargon.

Willow Farm Action
Group

The majority of the
public are unlikely to

Agree - include a
definition in the

Group

overarching spatial
vision.

know what a proposed glossary.
sustainability
appraisal is.

Willow Farm Action What is an Agree - include a

definition in the
proposed glossary.

Willow Farm Action
Group

First bullet refers to
“‘we will involve the
public and consultees
at the earliest
opportunity. Prefers
the wording at
paragraph 16 of the
NPPF which refers to
“shaped by early
proportionate and
effective engagement
between plan makers
and communities.

Agree reword
paragraph 2.9 of the
SCI to reflect NPPF
paragraph 16 as
follows:

e Plans should
be shaped by
early,
proportionate
and effective
engagement
with
communities,
organisations,
businesses and

Page 21




9, abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

other
consultees.

Willow Farm Action
Group

NPPF paragraph 128
states that applicants
should work closely
with those affected by
their proposals to
evolve designs that
take account of the
community. Whilst
this responsibility
rests with the
applicant the Ipa has
an important role to
play in
facilitating/supporting
this contact.

As the respondent
states the onus is on
the developer to
engage with the
community. The SCI
commits the Council
to encourage
applicants to carry out
early engagement
with the community
and this is considered
sufficient. However, it
is not possible to
compel developers to
carry out engagement.
No change required.

Willow Farm Action
Group

List of consultees
appear sufficiently
broad to cover all
those likely to have a
general interest in the
plans.

Noted

Willow Farm Action
Group

Bullet point refers to
“‘we will write to

Agree change bullet
point 4 under the

Page 22




/] abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

properties in the
immediate vicinity of
allocated sites and put
up site notices around
the site”. Should be
widened to include
those properties that
will be directly
affected by the
allocated sites for
example along an
existing cul-de-sac to
be used as an access
road.

heading: For
Development
Planning Documents"
to read

o We will write to
properties likely
to be directly
affected by an
allocated site
and put up site
notices around
the site.

Repeat above wording
for Supplementary
Planning Documents.

Please note for
planning applications
we will write to
adjoining properties
as set out in the SCI
and required under
the regulations. No
change required.

Page 23




g, abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

Willow Farm Action
Group

Would like to see the
retention of support in
relation to the
provision of flyers etc.
to local community
groups to deliver
information.

Agree subject to this
being at the discretion
of the Service
Manager for Planning
Policy.

Add new bullet:

At the discretion of the
Service Manager for
Planning Policy we
will give appropriate
consultation
documents to
community groups,
councils and statutory
organisations;

Willow Farm Action
Group

LPA has an important
role to play in
facilitating contact
between the
developer and local
residents — this should
be included within this
section.

The pre-application
stage is set out in
paragraph 3.3 of the
SCI which states that
that: for more
significant applications
discuss with
applicants the need to
engage with the
community. This is

Page 24




6/ abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

considered sufficient.
No change required.

Willow Farm Action
Group

Section 3.3 - Pre-
application stage —
does not capture the
essence of the NPPF
paragraph 128
guidance with
reference to
applicants working
closely with those
affected by their
proposals.

Pre-application advice
is given on an informal
basis and is often
technical in nature. It
is not practical to
formally consult
residents at this stage
which would be very
resource intensive.
Consultation is
undertaken in
accordance with the
regulations. No
change required.

Willow Farm Action
Group

4.4 - There is an over
reliance on site
notices a neighbour
letter should always
be sent.

It is normally the case
that neighbour letters
are sent to adjoining
properties. However,
sending letters in
every case would be
too onerous. No
change required.

Willow Farm Action
Group

The document
includes reference to
material planning

Agreed. A brief guide
on “material
considerations” will be

Page 25




08 abed

Appendix B

Respondent

Question 1 —
comments on the
section relating to
Planning Policy

Question 2 —
comments on the
section relating to
Development
Management

Question 3 — general
comments

GBC response

considerations, GBC
should provide further
guidance on material
planning guidance on
planning applications
in a separate
document/on line
resource to assist.
References to this
guidance should be
made in notification
letters flyers etc.

attached as an
appendix to the SCI.
Proposed change
include new Appendix
3.

Village Vision

No

No

No

Noted.

Page 26




Agenda Item 7

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Review of complaints received by the Council and Annual
Review Letter — Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman 2018/19

Date: 5th September 2019

Author: Director of Organisational Development and Democratic
Services

Wards Affected

Not applicable.
Purpose

To inform Members of the receipt of the Annual Review letter from the Office
of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman and the complaints
dealt with by the Council through the internal Complaints Procedure during the
year 2018-19 and to seek approval for minor changes to the Complaints,
Compliments and Comments Policy.

Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision

Recommendations
THAT:

a) The details of the Annual Review letter from the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman and the information in relation to the number
of complaints dealt with by the Council through the internal complaints
procedure in 2018/19 are noted; and

b) The amendments to the Council's Complaints, Compliments and
Comments Policy as detailed in the report and as shown at Appendix 2
are approved.

Page 81



Background

1.1.1 Members will be aware of the Council’s arrangements for dealing with
formal complaints, full details of which are available on the website and
provided in the Council's Complaints, Compliments and Comments
Policy. The Policy was reviewed in 2018 and an updated version
approved by Cabinet on 2 August 2018.

1.2 The departmental analysis of complaints by Service area appears
below. Members are to note that some of the columns will not add up
because some complaints have not been dealt with entirely within the
year and therefore fall outside the monitoring period.

1.3 Between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, the Council received 256
complaints as follows:

Service Complaints | Upheld/partially | Not
received upheld upheld
Community Relations 1 0 1
Customer Services & 5 3 2
Communications
Economic Growth & 1 0 1
Regeneration
Democratic Services 0 0 0
Legal Services 0 0 0
Leisure 11 1 10
Organisational Development 0 0 0
Parks & Street Care 52 5 47
Planning 19 1 18
Property Services 5 2 3
Public Protection 20 2 18
Revenues & Welfare Support 9 2 7
(Housing)
Revenues & Welfare Support 60 29 31
(Revenues & Benefits)
Waste 73 20 53
Total 256 65 191

This is a reduction on the 279 complaints received during 2017/18.

1.6  Where a complaint is not upheld in full or in part, the complainant may
ask for it to be considered further under Stage 2 of the complaints
procedure. 27 complaints were considered under Stage 2 between
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 as follows:

Service Stage 2 | Upheld/partially | Not
complaints | upheld Upheld

Community Relations 0 0 0

Customer Services & 0 0 0

Page 82



Communications

Economic Growth & 0 0 0
Regeneration

Democratic Services 0 0 0
Legal Services 0 0 0
Leisure 1 0 1
Organisational Development 0 0 0
Parks and Street Care 4 2 2
Planning 12 0 12
Property Services 0 0 0
Public Protection 2 0 2
Revenues & Welfare Support 0 0 0
(Housing)

Revenues & Welfare Support 7 3 4
(Revenues & Benefits)

Waste 1 0 1
Total 27 5 22
1.7  If the complainant is not happy with the response at Stage 2 he or she

1.8

is entitled to refer the complaint to the Local Government and Social
Care Ombudsman. Between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, 9
complaints were received by the Council via the Ombudsman, which is
an increase from the 4 complaints received the previous year. A
summary of the decisions of the LGO appears in the table below. Two
of the complaints received from the Ombudsman in 18/19 were not
determined until 19/20 as indicated below.

Service Decision of LGO

Planning Not upheld: no maladministration
Leisure Not upheld: no maladministration
Planning Closed after initial enquiries
Planning Not Upheld: no maladministration
Planning Not Upheld: no maladministration
Parks and Streetcare Determined in 19/20 not upheld
Planning Determined 19/20 not upheld
Revenues Referred back for local resolution
Planning Referred back for local resolution

The Annual Review letter for the year ending 31 March 2019 is
attached at Appendix 1. The statistics include all the complaints and
enquiries received by the Ombudsman in 2018/19 and decided by the
Ombudsman in 18/19. Members are to note that the number of
complaints and enquiries received do not match the Council’s figures
as a number of cases will have been received and decided in different
business years. In addition, those categorised as ‘referred back for
local resolution’ by the Ombudsman include those who are signposted
back to the Council and therefore are not treated as an Ombudsman
complaint. The Council may never ultimately be contacted by some
complainants who have approached the Ombudsman as the

Page 83




1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Ombudsman may refer them back to the Council and they never
subsequently get in touch.

Since April 2013, the Ombudsman has been publishing all decisions on
complaints they receive. Decision statements are published on the
Ombudsman website at www.lgo.org.uk no earlier than three months
after the date of the final decision. The information published does not
name the complainant or any individual involved with the complaint.
The Ombudsman also retains discretion not to publish a decision, for
example where it would not be in the interests of the person
complaining to publish or where there’s a reason in law not to.

In addition, the Ombudsman has published its review of local
government complaints for 2018/19. The report provides complaint
statistics for each English local authority, all in one place. A copy of the
review is available on the Ombudsman website.

Senior Leadership Team (SLT) receives quarterly reports on
complaints and compliments. Upheld complaints are considered in
detail together with remedial action proposed to avoid the subject of the
complaint arising again, where possible. In addition, an explanation is
provided where a complaint response has been sent outside the 10
working day period set out in the Policy. This focus has resulted in an
improvement in complaint response times since 2015/16 and just under
90% of complaints received in 2017/18 and 2018/19 were responded to
within 10 working days.

In considering the details of individual complaints it is evident that
service areas are responding to complaints as a priority and in a timely
fashion, however where complaints come in late during a working day,
in effect, services have only 9 working days to respond. In addition,
complex complaints are being dealt with, in particular by Planning
Services and Revenues Services, where it is not realistic to provide a
thorough response to the complainant within 10 working days. The
current Policy allows for an extension to the 10 working day response
time, but there are currently no limits on the length of extension
allowed. This does not provide a clear time frame for customers or
officers dealing with complaints and does not assist appropriate
monitoring.

Proposal

2.1

2.2

It is proposed that Cabinet note the contents of the report in respect of
complaints data and the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman’s Annual letter.

It is also proposed that the following minor amendments to the Policy
are made to enable complaints to be dealt with within reasonable
timescales and to ensure clarity for customers and officers in relation to
more complex complaints:

Page 84


http://www.lgo.org.uk/

2.3

24

a. Making it clear that the timescales for acknowledging and
providing a full response to a complaint will commence the first full
working day following receipt of the complaint. For example, this would
mean that if a complaint is received at 4pm on a Friday, the 10 working
days for responding will commence the following Monday.

b. Amending the facility to extend timescales in complex or
exceptional cases from an undefined period to a maximum period of 20
working days at the discretion of the lead SLT member for the relevant
service area.

In addition, it is proposed that reference to the requirement to log
complaints referred by the Ombudsman on the LGO system is
removed. At the time the LGO system was introduced, Legal Services
did not have a case management system in place, therefore the LGO
system was created to ensure Ombudsman complaints could be
managed and monitored. However, this can now be achieved through
the legal case management system.

A copy of the amended Policy is attached at Appendix 2 for approval
with the amendments shown in strikethrough and italics for ease of
reference.

Alternative Options

3

Members could amend the Policy to provide different timescales for
responses than those proposed. Customers however should have their
complaints dealt with in a timely manner and should have clarity around
timescales for provision of a response. By amending the
commencement date for responses, this will ensure that where
responses are received late on a working day managers still have 10
working days to respond. Also, the complex complaints responses now
have to be dealt with within a reasonable and clear time.

Financial Implications

4 None arising from this report.

Appendices

5.1  Appendix 1 — Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual
Review Letter.

5.2 Appendix 2 - Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy with

proposed amendments.

Background Papers

6

None identified.

Page 85



Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

7.2

To alert the Executive to the contents of the Local Government
Ombudsman Annual Review Letter and raise awareness of the
complaints received by the Council during 2018/19.

To ensure the Council's Policy and processes for dealing with
complaints remains fit for purpose, transparent and provides officers
and customers with a reasonable timescale for handling and
responding to complaints.

Page 86



Local Government &

OMBUDSMAN

24 July 2019
By email

Karen Bradford
Chief Executive
Gedling Borough Council

Dear Ms Bradford
Annual Review letter 2019

| write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 31
March 2019. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received
about your authority, the decisions we made, and your authority’s compliance with
recommendations during the period. | hope this information will prove helpful in assessing
your authority’s performance in handling complaints.

Complaint statistics

As ever, | would stress that the number of complaints, taken alone, is not necessarily a
reliable indicator of an authority’s performance. The volume of complaints should be
considered alongside the uphold rate (how often we found fault when we investigated a
complaint), and alongside statistics that indicate your authority’s willingness to accept fault
and put things right when they go wrong. We also provide a figure for the number of cases
where your authority provided a satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached us, and
new statistics about your authority’s compliance with recommendations we have made; both
of which offer a more comprehensive and insightful view of your authority’s approach to
complaint handling.

The new statistics on compliance are the result of a series of changes we have made to how
we make and monitor our recommendations to remedy the fault we find. Our
recommendations are specific and often include a time-frame for completion, allowing us to
follow up with authorities and seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented.
These changes mean we can provide these new statistics about your authority’s compliance
with our recommendations.

| want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold and may not
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include

Page 87



enquiries from people we signpost back to your authority, some of whom may never contact
you.

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our
website, alongside our annual review of local government complaints. For the first time, this
includes data on authorities’ compliance with our recommendations. This collated data
further aids the scrutiny of local services and we encourage you to share learning from the
report, which highlights key cases we have investigated during the year.

New interactive data map

In recent years we have been taking steps to move away from a simplistic focus on
complaint volumes and instead focus on the lessons learned and the wider improvements
we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the many. Our
ambition is outlined in our corporate strategy 2018-21 and commits us to publishing the
outcomes of our investigations and the occasions our recommendations result in
improvements for local services.

The result of this work is the launch of an interactive map of council performance on our
website later this month. Your Council’'s Performance shows annual performance data for all
councils in England, with links to our published decision statements, public interest reports,
annual letters and information about service improvements that have been agreed by each
council. It also highlights those instances where your authority offered a suitable remedy to
resolve a complaint before the matter came to us, and your authority’s compliance with the
recommendations we have made to remedy complaints.

The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on your authority’s compliance with
investigations. It is a useful snapshot of the service improvement recommendations your
authority has agreed to. It also highlights the wider outcomes of our investigations to the
public, advocacy and advice organisations, and others who have a role in holding local
councils to account.

I hope you, and colleagues, find the map a useful addition to the data we publish. We are
the first UK public sector ombudsman scheme to provide compliance data in such a way and
believe the launch of this innovative work will lead to improved scrutiny of councils as well as
providing increased recognition to the improvements councils have agreed to make following
our interventions.

Complaint handling training

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities
and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2018-19 we
delivered 71 courses, training more than 900 people, including our first ‘open courses’ in
Effective Complaint Handling for local authorities. Due to their popularity we are running six
more open courses for local authorities in 2019-20, in York, Manchester, Coventry and
London. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.

Finally, | am conscious of the resource pressures that many authorities are working within,
and which are often the context for the problems that we investigate. In response to that
situation we have published a significant piece of research this year looking at some of the

Page 88


https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/about-us/our-aims/our-mission-and-objectives
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training

common issues we are finding as a result of change and budget constraints. Called, Under
Pressure, this report provides a contribution to the debate about how local government can
navigate the unprecedented changes affecting the sector. | commend this to you, along with
our revised guidance on Good Administrative Practice. | hope that together these are a
timely reminder of the value of getting the basics right at a time of great change.

Yours sincerely,

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 89


https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice

06 dbed

Local Authority Report:  Gedling Borough Council
For the Period Ending:  31/03/2019

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website

Complaints and enquiries received

Education
Adult Care Benefits and and Environment
and Other

Services Tax . Children’s Services
Services .
Services

Corporate

Highways
and Housing
Transport

Planning and
Development

Referred
Incomplete or Advice back for
Invalid Given Local
Resolution

Closed After

Initial Not Upheld Uphold Rate (%) Total
Enquiries

Note: The uphold rate shows how often we found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a percentage of the total number of detailed investigations we completed.

Satisfactory remedy provided by authority

Upheld cases where the authority had provided a satisfactory % of upheld

remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman cases

Note: These are the cases in which we decided that, while the authority did get things wrong, it offered a
satisfactory way to resolve it before the complaint came to us.



https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics

T6 obed

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

Complaints where the

Complaints where compliance Complaints where the
with the recommended remedy authority complied with

Complaints where the authority

was recorded during the year* our recommendations on- AT T fc;]r;hpciirletc)i/vr\]/ﬁi T)?Jtr
recommendations late

time recommendations

Number
Compliance rate**

0%

Notes:
* This is the number of complaints where we have recorded a response (or failure to respond) to our recommendation for a remedy during the reporting year. This includes complaints that may have been

decided in the preceding year but where the data for compliance falls within the current reporting year.
** The compliance rate is based on the number of complaints where the authority has provided evidence of their compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. This includes instances where an

authority has accepted and implemented our recommendation but provided late evidence of that.




This page is intentionally left blank



Gedling %

Borough Council

Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy

The Council is committed to continually improving the quality of, and access to, the
services it provides. This policy covers all services delivered by the Council, or for which it
has responsibility, it does not include services where there are separate complaints
procedures, for example the conduct of elections, the conduct of Councillors or requests
for information under the Freedom of Information Act, Environmental Information
Regulations or Data Protection Act. In addition, issues which are in court or have already
been heard by a court or tribunal fall outside this policy.

A clear and accessible Complaints, Compliments and Comments process allows the
Council to demonstrate its commitment to managing customer feedback effectively.

This purpose of this Policy is to ensure that:

« Providing feedback to the Council is made as easy as possible.

o Feedback is dealt with promptly and efficiently.

o There is effective communication between council staff and both the person making the
complaint and any other partners involved in the complaint from an early stage.

o Every effort is made to resolve any complaints that are received at an early stage.

e The Council learns from all feedback received taking appropriate steps to improve
service provision or celebrate good feedback.

e There is clarity on the roles of staff with the process.

« Credibility and accountability are maintained through meaningful review and
monitoring.

Definitions

For the purpose of this Policy “feedback” includes compliments, comments and complaints
and the following definitions will be used;

Compliments

Compliments are specific expressions of satisfaction from customers concerning a function
or a service provided by the Council. A simple thank you, usually at the end of a contact,
would not normally be considered a compliment.

Comments
Comment are views or suggestions that customers may have about a service that is
provided by the Council or an initial request for a service.

Complaints

There is often confusion about what constitutes a complaint, which leads to complaints
mistakenly being labelled as requests for service. A request for service is not a situation
where the Customer is requesting an item or service that is missing/has been missed, this
is a complaint. However a complaint about a taxi driver or noisy neighbour would be
treated as a request for service.

Where there is any doubt whether the customer’s feedback is a complaint, a comment or a
request for service, it is to be treated as a complaint.

Page 93



A complaint is also any expression of dissatisfaction with the standard of a service that is
provided by the Council. This may include the action or lack of action taken by the Council
and/or the way in which the service has been provided, including the conduct of staff. This
will also include situations where customers state that the perceived failure has repeatedly
occurred.

This may include complaints about:

« failure to provide a service, or inadequate standard of service
* how we met a customer’s needs

» how we communicated with a customer

* how long we took to deal with a case

« treatment by or attitude of a member of staff

« failure to follow the appropriate administrative process.

The above definitions also extend to complaints in respect of partners or contractors

providing services on behalf of the Council, in these cases the contracting/managing

department is responsible for ensuring that complaints are investigated, resolved and
responded to.

There is no difference between a formal and an informal complaint. Both are expressions
of dissatisfaction that require attention as a complaint and a response.

Whistleblowing

A complaint of a serious nature which gives rise to concerns about fraud or corruption will
be dealt with under the Council’s Whistleblowing procedures.

English lanquage requirement for Public Sector workers

The Council is under a duty to ensure that all staff in customer facing roles are fluent in
spoken English to the extent necessary to enable them to perform their role effectively.

If a customer feels that a member of staff in a customer facing role has insufficient
proficiency in spoken English for the performance of their role they can complain to the
Council. This complaint will then be investigated and a response provided in accordance
with the Policy.

Please note that a complaint about a member of staff’'s accent, dialect, origin or nationality
will not be considered a legitimate complaint.

How a customer may provide feedback

A customer may provide feedback either;

by using the on-line complaints form on the Council’'s website
by telephone

in writing (by email or letter)

in person

via a Councillor

We will respond to customers in writing, unless it is appropriate to respond via other
channels of contact (for example the telephone or in person).

Page 94



Customers are encouraged to put their complaints in writing to give as much information
as possible to aid investigation. If they are making a verbal complaint, we will take down
their details and confirm with them that they wish the complaint to be investigated and how
to contact them with the outcome of the investigation. Standard forms are available on the
Council’'s website and at all Council reception areas.

The Council’s Leisure Centres have ‘comments books’ available for customers in the
Reception areas. The Manager of the Leisure Centre reviews these each day and
provides a response in the book, this can be checked by the customer who made the
comment, and other customers which ensures there is comprehensive feedback.

The Council will ensure that reasonable adjustments are made to help customers access
and use the Council’s services. The Council will provide assistance to those who may
struggle with providing feedback or require information in another language or format.

Recording compliments, complaints and comments

The Service Manager (Customer Services and Communications) is responsible for the
Council’'s compliments, complaints and comments system.

To ensure that there is consistency across the different Council departments, Service
Managers must designate appropriate staff to receive and deal with any feedback
regarding their service area. They must also ensure that relevant staff in their departments
are aware of the importance of recognising what compliments and complaints are and are
dealt with and recorded on the Council’s compliments, complaints and comments system.

All compliments and complaints must be recorded promptly in the Councils compliments,
complaints and comments system and dealt with in the agreed timescales. This will allow
the Council to; take into account customer feedback, pass on compliments to relevant
staff, learn from mistakes, identify improvements to service delivery and identify training
needs.

Where there is a complaint involving more than one department of the Council then the
departments involved will identify a lead officer to investigate and deal with the complaint.

If a complaint involves more than one organisation, for example Nottinghamshire County
Council, the dealing department should ensure that communication is made with the third
party to ensure the Customer receives a proper response and to avoid customers being
passed back and forth between organisations.

Guidance for managing compliments

All compliments should be acknowledged and, if relating to a specific individual or team,
relevant staff informed that a compliment has been received.

Guidance for managing comments

All comments should be acknowledged, appropriate action taken and, where relevant,
feedback given to the customer within 10 days of receipt.

Framework for managing complaints

The Council has a three stage complaint process:

Page 95



For the purposes of calculating the timescales set out below, day 1 is the first full working
day following receipt of the complaint.

“Appropriate Director” means the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive or Director
responsible for the relevant service area.

Stage 1 - Service Department Complaint (Investigated at point of service delivery)

1.

An acknowledgement should be sent within 2 working days of receipt of the
complaint.

. A full response should be sent within 10 working days of receipt of the complaint. If

this is not possible because of the complexity of the complaint, the timescale may
be extended up to a maximum of 20 working days at the discretion of the
appropriate Director. This discretion will only be exercised in exceptional cases. The
customer will be advised that the investigation is continuing and given the new

timescale for a full response giving-an-indication-of- when-itwill-be-completed.

The customer will be advised in the Council’s response of what they need to do to
progress to stage 2 if they remain dissatisfied with the outcome of the complaint.

Stage 2 - Service Department Reviews

1.

An acknowledgement should be sent within 2 working days of receipt of the request
for a review.

The relevant Service Manager (or Director if the stage 1 complaint was dealt with by
the Service Manager) will ensure that an objective review is carried out for any
stage 2 complaint that is received. As well as reviewing the original complaint and
the Council’s response under stage 1 of the complaints procedure it will also take in
to account any further relevant information provided by the customer.

A full response should be sent within 10 working days of the request for a review. If
this is not possible, because of the complexity of the complaint, the timescale may
be extended up to a maximum of 20 working days at the discretion of the
appropriate Director (or Chief Executive where the Director is dealing with the
response). This discretion will only be exercised in exceptional cases. The customer
will be advised that the investigation is continuing and given the new timescale for a

full response giving-an-inrdication-of- when-it-will-be-completed. Regular contact

should be maintained until the complaint is resolved.

The customer will be advised in the response that they may complain further to the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman if they remain dissatisfied with the
outcome and sent details of their procedure.

Stage 3 — Referral to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
(Ombudsman)

Any correspondence received from/sent to the Ombudsman will be handled by the
Council’'s Service Manager: Legal Services on behalf of the Council’s Monitoring

Officer who-will-enter-thereferral-onto-the LGO-system. The actual referral will also be

sent to the relevant Service Manager for their comments.

Feedback relating to staff behaviour

Page 96



Notifying staff of compliments made about them can improve staff satisfaction, staff
morale, customer service and performance. Where a complaint relates to a specific
member of staff, the complaint will be investigated in an appropriate way, which may
include consideration under the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure.

Remedies

Where a complaint investigation identifies that things have gone wrong an appropriate
remedy will be determined. Appropriate remedies could include:

e An apology

e An explanation of what went wrong

e Actions to put things right

o Some form of compensation to the customer (in line with delegated powers)

The guiding principle must be that, where possible, the customer is put back in the position
they would have been if things had not gone wrong.

Evaluating our response to customers

Customer Services may contact customers, following resolution, asking them to complete
a satisfaction form. The aim of this is to provide information to help the Council determine:

o Whether the complaint procedure was accessible and easy to use.
o Levels of satisfaction with the way the complaint was handled and remedy offered

Monitoring

Service Managers should ensure that they monitor and review outcomes of all feedback
that they receive within their departments to identify trends and to use them for discussion
at team meetings, staff development and PDRs.

Each quarter, the Service Manager (Customer Services and Communications) will collate
details relating to the number of compliments and complaints received by the Council for
each Service area. These details will be entered onto the Council’s Corporate
Performance Management System. Following this the Customer Insight Officer will
prepare a report and analysis for consideration by Senior Leadership Team.

Unreasonably persistent complainants

On occasions certain complaints can be difficult to resolve and can cause anxiety and
distress to customers and employees. Whilst the aim of the council is always to try to find
a way to resolve matters, there are occasions when customers become unreasonable or
unreasonably persistent in their actions to obtain the outcome that they want.

There is a need to ensure that these complaints are dealt with fairly. However, there is
also a need to ensure that Council resources are used effectively and that other customers
or employees do not suffer any detriment as a result of their behaviour. There is a
separate policy to deal with any unreasonably persistent complainants.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Forward Plan

Date: 5 September 2019

Author: Service Manager, Democratic Services
Wards Affected

Borough-wide.

Purpose

To present the Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month period.
Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation

It is recommended THAT Cabinet note the contents of the draft Forward Plan
making comments where appropriate.

Background

1 The Council is required by law to give to give notice of key decisions
that are scheduled to be taken by the Executive.

A key decision is one which is financially significant, in terms of
spending or savings, for the service or function concerned (more than
£500,000), or which will have a significant impact on communities, in
two or more wards in the Borough.

In the interests of effective coordination and public transparency, the
plan includes any item that is likely to require an Executive decision of
the Council, Cabinet or Cabinet Member (whether a key decision or
not). The Forward Plan covers the following 4 months and must be
updated on a rolling monthly basis. All items have been discussed and
approved by the Senior Leadership Team.

Page 99



Proposal

2 The Forward Plan is ultimately the responsibility of the Leader and
Cabinet as it contains Executive business due for decision. The Plan is
therefore presented at this meeting to give Cabinet the opportunity to
discuss, amend or delete any item that is listed.

Alternative Options

3.1 Cabinet could decide not agree with any of the items are suggested for
inclusion in the plan. This would then be referred back to the Senior
Leadership Team.

3.2 Cabinet could decide to move the date for consideration of any item.
Financial Implications

4 There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.
Appendices

5 Appendix 1 — Forward Plan

Background Papers

6  None identified.

Reasons for Recommendations

7 To promote the items that are due for decision by Gedling Borough
Council’'s Executive over the following four month period.

Page 100



Gedling

Borough Council

FORWARD PLAN
FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 SEPTEMBER 2019 TO 31 DECEMBER 2019

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key and non-key decisions which the Executive Cabinet, individual Executive Members or Officers expect
to take during the next four month period.

The current members of the Executive Cabinet are:

Councillor John Clarke — Leader of the Council
Councillor Michael Payne — Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Resources and Reputation
Councillor Peter Barnes — Portfolio Holder for Environment
Councillor David Ellis — Portfolio Holder for Public Protection

—UCouncillor Gary Gregory — Portfolio Holder for Community Development

QD Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth — Portfolio Holder for Growth and Regeneration

 Councillor Viv McCrossen — Portfolio Holder for Young People and Equalities

~Councillor Henry Wheeler — Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing.

o

IAAnyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by contacting the relevant officer listed against each key
decision, within the time period indicated.



Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Open / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a Key Decision?

revenue budget.

Haywood Road Community Centre 10 Oct 2019 Lance Juby, Service Portfolio Holder for Open
For Cabinet to consider community asset Cabinet Manager Community Community
transfer of Haywood Road Community Relations Development
Centre to Haywood Road Community
Association. No
Quarterly (Q2) Budget Monitoring and 7 Nov 2019 Alison Ball, Service Portfolio Holder for Open
Virement Report Cabinet Manager Finance Resources and
To update members on financial Reputation
performance information for the 2nd Yes
quarter of the 2019/20 year.
edling Plan Quarter 2 Performance 7 Nov 2019 Helen Barrington, Leader of the Council Open
eport Cabinet Director of
(cdo inform Cabinet in summary of the Organisational
(Position against Improvement Actions and Development & No
HRerformance Indicators in the 2019/2020 Democratic Services
%edling Plan for the most recent quarter
Quarterly (Q3) Budget Monitoring and 30 Jan 2020 Alison Ball, Service Portfolio Holder for Open
Virement Report Cabinet Manager Finance Resources and
To update members on financial Reputation
performance information for the 3rd Yes
quarter of the 2019/20 year.
Gedling Plan Quarter 3 Performance 30 Jan 2020 Helen Barrington, Leader of the Council Open
Report Cabinet Director of
To inform Cabinet in summary of the Organisational
position against Improvement Actions and Development & No
Performance Indicators in the 2019/2020 Democratic Services
Gedling Plan for the most recent quarter
Gedling Plan 2020/21 (including General | 13 Feb 2020 Alison Ball, Service Leader/Portfolio Holder Open
Fund Revenue Budget) Cabinet Manager Finance for Resources and
To approve the priorities, objectives and Reputation
top actions for the Council for the 5 Mar 2020 Yes
forthcoming year with the associated Council




Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Public / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?

Capital Programme and Capital 13 Feb 2020 Alison Ball, Service Portfolio Holder for Open
Investment Strategy Cabinet Manager Finance Resources and

To approve the capital investment strategy Reputation

and capital spending programme for the 5 Mar 2020 Yes
next financial year. Council

Willow Farm Development Brief June 12 Dec 2019 Graeme Foster, Portfolio Holder for Open
2019 Cabinet Principal Planning Growth and

For Cabinet to approve a development Officer Regeneration

brief for land at Willow Farm. Yes

€0T abed

September 2019




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2019.
	4 Establish a budget for Gedling Country Park Outside Seating Area
	5 Establish a budget for Conway Road Recreation Ground Play Area Redevelopment
	Appendix 1 Conway Park Development Plan
	Appendix 2 Post-Board Letter (Approved)CF-1488

	6 Gedling Borough Statement of Community Involvement
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	7 Review of complaints received by the Council and Annual Review Letter – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 2018/19
	App 1 -Review of complaints received by the Council and Annual Review Letter – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 2018/19
	App 2 -  Review of complaints received by the Council and Annual Review Letter – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 2018/19

	8 Forward Plan
	$$Plan


